
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343276 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 

Audit Board 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 

A Virtual meeting of the above Board will be held at 5 p.m. on 

 
Wednesday 20 January 2021 

 
 
 

 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

(12 January 2021) 
 
 

 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor R Gosine 

Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 

Councillor A R Lloyd 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 20 January 2021 
 
 

Viewing this meeting on YouTube 

This meeting may be viewed on YouTube by clicking on, and opening, the link 
below: 
 
https://youtu.be/oWpeLT_DJCc 

   
 

1. Apologies for Absence.   
 

2. Declarations of Interest.   
 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any Grant(s) of Dispensation from the Strategic 
Director (Internal Services).  
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 
October 2020  

MD 
(Pages 1 - 10) 

   
 

 

4. Urgent Items   
 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

5. References from Other Committees (IF ANY)   
 

 There are currently no references from other Committees for the 
Board to consider. 
 

 

6. Report from the External Auditor   
(Pages 11 - 30) 

 To receive an update report from the Council’s External Auditor, 
Grant Thornton UK. 
 

 

https://youtu.be/oWpeLT_DJCc


 

7. Internal Audit Update (January 2021)   
(Pages 31 - 48) 

 To receive a report from the Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit 
Executive). 
 

 

8. Strategic Risk Register   
(Pages 49 - 88) 

9. Selective Invoice Checks   
(Pages 89 - 92) 

 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the virtual meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 21 October 
2020 from 5.07 pm. via the Zoom platform, and streamed live to the public via 
YouTube. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor R Gosine 
Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor A R Lloyd 
 

ABSENT: 
 

Councillor P M Harman 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services) 
 Sheri Green – Strategic Director (External 

Services) 
 Tim Sams – Head of Finance / Section 151 

Officer 
 Marie Kelly-

Stone 
– Head of Legal & Valuation Services 

 Fran Chivers – Internal Audit Manager  (Chief Audit 
Executive) 

 Mr. Ian Murray – Grant Thornton UK (External 
Auditors) 

 Mr. Keith 
Mungadzi 

– Grant Thornton UK 

   
 

50. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 
The Chairman welcomed Members to the virtual meeting of the Audit Board 
via the Zoom platform, and expressed the hope that Councillor Harman would 
join the proceedings in due course. He confirmed that the proceedings were 
being streamed live to the public via YouTube, as per the link published on 
the Council website.  
 
He welcomed the remote participation of Mr. Ian Murray and Mr. Keith 
Mungadzi from the Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK, and noted 
the remote presence of the Council’s Strategic Directors for both Internal and 
External Services, the Head of Legal Services, the Head of Finance & Section 
151 Officer, and the Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive). 
 
An apology for absence was subsequently received from Councillor Harman. 
 

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

2 

52. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 JULY 
2020  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2020 be confirmed as 
accurate. 

 
53. URGENT ITEMS  

 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for the Board to 
consider. 
 

54. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
None 
 

55. ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 OF THE MONITORING OFFICER ON THE 
REVIEW OF ETHICAL GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND 
ANCILLARY MATTERS  
 
 The report from the Head of Legal Services asked Board Members to 
consider and endorse, the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 2019/2020 on 
the Review of Ethical Governance Arrangements and Ancillary Matters 
(attached as Appendix A to the report).  
 
 The Head of Legal Services advised the Board that the 2019/2020 Review 
was based on the pre-existing Council management structure, not the revised 
management structure submitted to the General Assembly of the Council for 
approval on 12 October 2020. She also advised that the current Member 
Code of Conduct was subject to a national review, and that Members would 
be updated on the results of that consultation in a future report to the Board.   
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Legal Services for her report and 
comprehensive 2019/2020 annual review document. 
 
In the absence of any questions from Members it was RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members endorsed the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 
2019/2020 on the Review of Ethical Governance Arrangements and 
Ancillary Matters as set out in Appendix A to the report. 

 
56. COMPLAINTS MONITORING AND PROCEDURE REVIEW - 2019/2020  

 
The report from the Head of Legal Services provided Board Members with 
information on the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure, including the 
number and nature of complaints received in respect of the services provided 
by the Council, during the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 and asked 
the Board to comment accordingly. 
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

3 

Members were advised that the 2019/2020 review had revealed compliance 
with timescales for responding to complaints during the difficult times of the 
Corona virus pandemic. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Legal Services for her report. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Board Members approve the 2019/2020 Complaints Monitoring 
and Procedure Review for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 

 
57. REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  

 
The covering report from the Head of Finance/Section 151 Officer advised the 
Board that the External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK, had substantially 
completed their audit of the Council’s 2019/20 Accounts as set out in their 
‘Audit Findings’ report [Appendix A to the covering report]. 
 
Members were advised that the External Auditor proposed to issue an 
Unqualified Opinion on both the Financial Statements and the Value for 
Money Conclusion, and were asked to approve the Letter of Representation, 
attached at Appendix B to the covering report, for the joint signature of the 
Board Chairman and the Head of Finance in his role as Section 151 Officer. 
 
Mr Ian Murray (Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton) updated Members 
following his initial comments to the Board in July 2020 [Min. No. 41 refers]. 
The Coronavirus pandemic had continued to impact on the traditional 
timetable for the annual submission of local government accounts. The 
Council had completed its role in August (usually July) and Grant Thornton 
hoped to complete its external audit of the Council’s 2019/20 Accounts by 30 
November. He expected to issue an ‘Unqualified Opinion’ with only minor 
adjustments which management were already implementing. Assurances over 
the Pension Fund were awaited, and the increased risks to the Council’s 
property and investments portfolios posed by Covid-19 remained, as set out in 
his report [Appendix A to the covering report]. Grant Thornton had also re-
visited their Value for Money assessment since the last report to the Board in 
July, and had found the Council to be in a strong financial position, compared 
to other local authorities in Kent, which had enabled Dartford to withstand the 
initial shocks to the local government sector posed by the pandemic. 
 
He proposed, and the Chairman agreed, that signature of the Letter of 
Representation [report Appendix B] should be delayed, until Grant Thornton 
had completed its work on the 2019/20 Accounts, presently scheduled by 30 
November. 
 
In response to a question from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance (in 
attendance as a Board Member), Mr Murray advised that the Council’s strong 
financial position and ability to weather the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
had been based on; a positive level of fiscal reserves, low-exposure on 
investments, a strong Housing Revenue Account (HRA), and the absence of 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

4 

arms-length management organisations (ALMOs) to pay to deliver Council 
services.  
 
The Council had successfully tailored its services base to manage its 
response to the pandemic without ‘turning-off the tap’. The Authority still had 
challenges to face in terms of its revenue base, with parking income impacted 
by the Government ‘lock-down’ measures, and the Council’s leisure facilities 
now a ‘cost factor’ rather than a revenue provider. Council Tax and Business 
Rates had also been adversely impacted as revenue streams. The pandemic 
had imposed additional costs for the Council (and all local authorities) in terms 
of increased provision for residents to combat the continuing effects of Covid-
19, however, the Council’s fiscal reserves and previous good fiscal 
management, had enabled the Authority to positively weather the initial impact 
of the pandemic and meet its commitments to residents. 
 
The Chairman thanked the External Auditor for his report, and welcomed his 
intention to issue an Unqualified Opinion in due course, on both the Financial 
Statements and Value for Money Conclusion for the Council’s 2019/20 Annual 
Accounts.  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note and welcome the intention of the External Auditor 
to issue an Unqualified Opinion on both the Financial Statements and 
the Value for Money Conclusion for the Council’s 2019/20 Annual 
Accounts, as set out in Appendix A to the covering report; 
 

2. That the Letter of Representation [Appendix B to the covering report], 
be signed by the Chairman of the Board and the Section 151 Officer at 
a later date in November 2020, once the External Auditor has 
completed his findings.  

 
58. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2019-20  

 
The report from the Head of Finance/Section 151 Officer presented the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts 2019/20 for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2020 [attached as Appendix A to the report], for the Board’s approval 
and permission to publish.  
 
The Head of Finance endorsed the comments of the External Auditor Grant 
Thornton UK, in their Audit Findings report [previous agenda Item 8 Min. No. 
57 refers]; that some audit work remained ongoing to produce a finalised 
Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 by the extended deadline of 30 November 
2020. However, the External Auditor expected to issue an unqualified opinion 
for both the Financial Statements and the Value for Money Conclusion, as 
presently set out in Appendix A to that report [Min. No. 57 refers].  
 
On that basis, the Head of Finance sought delegated authority from the Audit 
Board, in his role as the Council’s Section 151 Officer, to agree any 
subsequent changes to the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts presently before 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

5 

the Board, prior to signature by the Board Chairman and himself, and 
publication by 30 November. The present External Audit Opinion and Value 
for Money Conclusion [Appendix A to Item 8], would be replaced in the final 
2019/20 Accounts as appropriate, and thany non-cosmetic changes made, 
would be shared with the Audit Board for information. 
 
Members were advised that no significant changes had been required in the 
preparation of the 2019/20 Accounts in comparison to the 2018/19 exercise, 
and that draft Accounts for 2019/20 had been presented for audit to Grant 
Thornton on 12 July. However, the continued impact of the pandemic had 
required some finance staff to be re-allocated to combat Covid-19 and the 
remainder to work remotely from home. This had inevitably impacted on 
timing and the final deadline for presentation, adoption and publication of the 
2019/20 Council Accounts had been pushed back to 30 November.  
 
The 2019/20 Accounts showed a positive overall picture for the Council, with 
increases in the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
reserves, as reported to Cabinet in June 2020 [Cabinet Min. No. 125 refers]. 
The main accounting statements were set-out in Appendix A (agenda pages 
135-139), the Movement in Reserves Statement at page p.136 and the 
Expenditure and Funding Analysis on page 140. The Statement of Accounts 
represented a balance between financial reporting and budget statements, 
and Members were reminded that not all resources had surpluses or were 
useable to meet ongoing expenditure commitments and services. 
 
 The Chairman, supported by the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance, 
congratulated the Head of Finance and his Team on an excellent set of 
annual accounts for the period under review, achieved despite the significant 
challenges presented by the Coronavirus pandemic and the subsequent 
government lockdown measures, and asked that the thanks of the Audit 
Board be recorded in the Minutes. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Board Members approve for publication the Council’s 2019/20 
Statement of Accounts for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 
as presented in Appendix A to the report, subject to any amendments 
notified by and agreed with the External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK; 
 

2. That the Head of Finance, in his role as the Council’s Section 151 
Officer, be given delegated authority to approve any subsequent 
changes to the current 2019/20 Statement of Accounts, arising from 
the ongoing audit work being undertaken by the External Auditor; 
 

3. That the Audit Board Chairman and the Council’s Section 151 Officer 
be authorised to approve and incorporate any changes to the current 
2019/20 Financial Statements and Value for Money Conclusion 
presented to the Board, arising from the External Auditors ongoing 
audit work, prior to joint signature of a revised 2019/20 Statement of 
Accounts for publication by 30 November 2020; 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

6 

 
4. That the Head of Finance and his team be congratulated on completing 

a very positive set of draft 2019/20 Accounts for audit by the 12 June 
deadline, despite the significant difficulties imposed by the Coronavirus 
pandemic and the subsequent impact of the government’s lockdown 
measures on traditional working practices. 

 
59. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  

 
The report from the Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive) updated 
Members on Internal Audit outcomes and activity since the last report to the 
Board in July 2020, and presented information and progress on the 
procurement of an External Quality Assessment.  
 
The Audit Manager highlighted the following principal points in her report for 
Board Members: 
 

 Final audit reports completed since the last report to the Board in July 
were listed in Appendix A of the report [table - agenda p.243 refers]. 
The final three audits from the 2019/20 Plan had attained ‘Substantial’ 
levels of assurance, full details were contained in Annex B of Appendix 
A [agenda pages 247-251 refer]; 

 Work on the 2020/21 Audit Plan had commenced in July with 7 (seven) 
audits presently at the ‘Fieldwork’ stage and 3 (three) completed as 
listed in Annex A to Appendix A [agenda p.246 refers]; 

 The long out-standing audit of Cyber Security had been completed and 
given a ‘Limited’ level of Assurance with a strong Action Plan including 
several learning points [full details Annex B agenda p.250]; 

 The Review of the Council’s Counter Fraud and Whistleblowing Policy 
was presented separately [agenda Item 11 refers]; 

 It had been agreed with the Chairman (for subsequent formal approval 
by the Board in October), that a ‘Home Working Review’ audit be 
added to the 2020/21 Audit Plan; 

 In the event of a second wave of the Coronavirus and subsequent 
government imposed lockdown, some members of the IA Team would 
again be re-deployed to the Council’s Response Team; 

 External Quality Assessment (EQA) – following discussions with both 
Dartford and Sevenoaks Section 151 Officers and the evaluation of 
submitted quotes, the Audit Partnership had appointed the Institute of 
Internal Auditors (the IIA) to undertake an external quality assessment 
of the internal audit function in both Councils. The IIA were 
acknowledged as the standard setters in the sector and had already 
been in touch with the Audit Manager with proposals for a review to 
commence in January 2021. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Audit Manager for her comprehensive October 
2020 Update report, and confirmed that a summary of the proposed ‘Home 
Working Review’ would be presented to the next meeting of the Board 
[January 2021]. 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

7 

 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Board Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report and 
updates (October 2020) attached as Appendix A to the report; 
 

2. That Members approve the addition of a ‘Home Working Review’ to the 
2020/21 Audit Plan.  

 
60. COUNTER FRAUD POLICIES  

 
The report from the Audit Manager presented the Council’s updated Counter 
Fraud and Corruption Strategy and the separate Whistleblowing Policy 
(attached as Appendix A and B respectively to the report) for Member 
approval. 
 
The Audit Manager highlighted the following points for Members: 
 

 Both policies had last been approved by the Board in 2017 and a 
review had been overdue; 

 The basic components of both policies had been retained, then 
extensively refreshed and updated in line with best practice, including 
review against the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing Risks of 
Fraud & Corruption, and the NAO criteria for Whistleblowing Policies 
and the Whistleblowing Commission Code of Practice; 

 The updated Whistleblowing Policy [Appendix B to the report], was 
long, detailed and comprehensive, and by necessity, was required to 
be a stand-alone document. The new Policy strengthened the role of IA 
in the Council’s Whistleblowing arrangements, and as a consequence, 
IA would not be able to undertake assurance work on the effectiveness 
of the Council’s Whistleblowing arrangements going forward. However, 
a sister local authority could be asked to do so, or an external 
professional organisation; 

 The updated Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy [Appendix A to 
the report] placed a new emphasis on the role of managers to instil a 
‘counter-fraud culture’ throughout the Council, in all its activities and 
services. In pursuit of that aim and culture change, it was proposed to 
roll-out messages via the Council’s Communications team and on the 
Intranet, during International Fraud Awareness week [15-21 November] 
to heighten awareness. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Audit Manager and her team for their efforts in 
reviewing and updating two very important Council policies.  
 
   RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members approve the Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy 
attached as Appendix A to the report; 
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

8 

2. That Members approve the Whistleblowing Policy attached as 
Appendix B to the report; 
 

3. That Members agree that any future minor amendments to job titles 
and contact details may be made without reference to the Board; 
 

4. That Members note the proposals to promote fraud awareness during 
the forthcoming International Fraud Awareness week.  

 
61. SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS  

 
Following the virtual meeting of the Board on 22 July 2020 via the Zoom 
platform, the Chairman had been asked to select a further five (5) payments 
for checking by Internal Audit. 
 
The standard report summarised the outcome of that exercise for Members. 
Four of the five payments selected had been processed correctly by Officers 
in accordance with payment procedures.  
 
A fifth payment to Hi-Way Services Ltd (for the painting/removal of road 
lines) had been made promptly, but not in accordance with Contract Standing 
Orders and procurement procedures. No quotation had been sought from the 
company in advance, nor had a purchase order been raised using the 
Council’s e-Procurement System. Further investigation by IA revealed that the 
Council’s cumulative spend with the company over the previous 3 year period, 
had reached the spending threshold after which three (3) independent quotes 
were required under the Council’s Procurement Guide. Appropriate advice 
had been provided to the Service, including ongoing discussions with the 
Council’s Senior Finance & Procurement Officer, on routes to market and 
spending ceilings with providers. 
 
In response to a question from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance 
[attending as an Audit Board Member], the Head of Finance advised that his 
Department currently analysed spend with suppliers for a 12 (twelve) month 
period, and that he had asked the Senior Finance & Procurement Officer to 
analyse spend with suppliers over a 36 month period going forward. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Audit Manager for her report and confirmed for 
Members that, given the virtual nature of the meeting, he would again select 5 
further payments for checking by IA for reporting to the Board in January 
2021. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the report; 
2. That the Chairman be asked to select five (5) further payments for 

checking by Internal Audit and the outcome reported to the Board in 
January 2021. 
 

Page 8Agenda Item 3



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2020 
 
 

9 

In closing proceedings, the Chairman thanked all Officers for their reports and 
virtual attendance, Members for their attendance and contribution, and the 
Committee Co-ordinator for organising and minuting the proceedings, 
including live-streaming to the public via YouTube.  
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 5.45 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor D A Hammock 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 9 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



                

AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 
 

 

REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  
 

 
1.      Summary 

 
1.1. To present to the Board the Addendum to the Audit Findings Report and 

the External Auditor’s 2019/20 Annual Audit Letter. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That Members note the Addendum to the Audit Findings Report 2019/20, at 
 Appendix A to the report 

 
2.2 That Members note the Annual Audit Letter for 2019/20, at Appendix B to 
 the report. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
 

3.1 As a result of outstanding audit work, the external audit of the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts had not been finalised prior to the last Board meeting in 
October.  
 

3.2 The audit has now been concluded and the Statement of Accounts signed and 
published under the delegated authority agreed at the last meeting of the Board 
[minute 58]. 

 
3.3 Accordingly, Grant Thornton has published an Addendum to the Audit Findings 

Report to take account of the additional work completed since the last meeting, 
which is included as Appendix A to this report.  

 
3.4 The second document is the Annual Audit Letter, at Appendix B to this report, 

which is published alongside the accounts. The Letter simply draws to a close 
the work of Grant Thornton in 2019/20 but does not repeat the level of detail 
included in the Audit Findings report. 
 

3.5 The Annual Audit Letter includes proposals for fees for additional work due to 
the Covid 19 pandemic. These fees will require the authorisation of Public Sector 
Audit Appointments.  

 
3.6 A representative of Grant Thornton’s audit team will present the items, the 

subject of this report, to the Board.  
 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 
 

  

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications As per the report 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment None 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Grant Thornton – Addendum to the Audit Findings Report 
 Appendix B – Grant Thornton – Annual Audit Letter for 2019/20 

  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
343148 

Internal 
Services 
/Financial 
Services 

N/A 

      

 

Page 12Agenda Item 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report addendum for Dartford Borough Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

Audit Findings Report 

Addendum 

Year ending 31 March 2020
Dartford Borough Council 

27 November 2020

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report addendum for Dartford Borough Council  |  2019/20

Commercial in confidence

Audit Adjustments

Detail

Statement of 

Comprehensive Net 

Income £‘000

Statement of Financial 

Position £’ 000

Impact on adjusted net 

surplus/(deficit) £’000

Discounted Sales Scheme 

Management used the incorrect house price index to calculate the net present valuation of the debtor in 

respect of the discounted sales scheme. Using the correct index would have resulted in a smaller 

reduction in the value of the debtor at year end and a lower amount being recognised through other 

operating income. This misstatement also impacts on various other disclosure notes in the financial 

statements. Management have decided not to amend the accounts as this is not material to the financial 

statements.

Management Response 

CR 

177

DR 

177 

DR 

177

Overall impact 177 177 177

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2019/20 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements.  

Addendum 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6



The Annual Audit Letter
for Dartford Borough Council 

Year ended 31 March 2020

December 2020

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 11

Appendices

A     Reports issued and fees

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

Iain Murray 

Key Audit Partner

T:  020 7728 3328

E: Iain.G.Murray@uk.gt.com

Keith Mungadzi

Audit Manager

T: 020 7728 2393

E: Keith.Mungadzi@uk.gt.com 

Ezgi Aslan 

Audit In-Charge

T: 020 7184 4309

E: Ezgi.Aslan@uk.gt.com

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

3

Executive Summary
Purpose
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 
work that we have carried out at Dartford Borough Council ( the Council) for 
the year ended 31 March 2020.  

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to 
the Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to 
draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed 
the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor 
Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed 
findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit Board Committee as those 
charged with governance in our Audit Findings Report on 21 October 2020.

Respective responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, 
which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 
Act). Our key responsibilities are to:
• give an opinion on the Council financial statements (section two)
• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section 
three).

In our audit of the Council financial statements, we comply with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council's financial statements to be £1,300,000, which is 2% of the Council's gross 
revenue expenditure. 

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 30 November 2020. 

We included an emphasis of matter paragraph in our report in respect of the uncertainty over valuations of the Council's land and 
buildings and investment properties and the property assets of its pension fund given the Coronavirus pandemic. This does not
affect our opinion that the statements give a true and fair view of the Council's financial position and its income and expenditure 
for the year.

Whole of Government Accounts 
(WGA)

We completed work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO.

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Our work P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

4

Executive Summary

Working with the Council

During the year we have delivered a number of successful outcomes with 
you:

• Accounts deadline – with restrictions for non essential travel we worked 
with you to establish and adopt to new remote access working 
arrangements to deliver the financial statements audit before the deadline.

• Understanding your financial challenges – through the value for money 
conclusion we provided you with assurance on your operational and 
financial effectiveness.

• We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff during 
these extraordinary times

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 30 November 2020.

Certificate We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Dartford Borough Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 30 November 2020. 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

5

Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality
In our audit of the Council’s financial statements, we use the concept of 
materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in 
evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the 
misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably 
knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements 
to be £1,300,000, which is 2% of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure. 
We used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the Council's financial 
statements are most interested in where the Council has spent its revenue in 
the year. 

We set a lower threshold of £65,000, above which we reported errors to the 
Audit Board Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit
Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:
• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and 

adequately disclosed; 
• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts to check it is consistent with 
our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements included in the 
Statement of Accounts on which we gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit 
Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business 
and is risk based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to 
these risks and the results of this work.

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

6

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and 
conclusions

Covid-19 

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led 
to unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring 
urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented. 
The Covid-19 pandemic impacted on the production and 
audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2020

As part of our audit work we have:

• worked with management to understand the implications the response to 
the Covid-19 pandemic has had on the organisation’s ability to prepare the 
financial statements and update financial forecasts, and assessed the 
implications for our materiality calculations;

• liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments 
to co-ordinate practical cross sector responses to issues as and when they 
arose;

• evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements that 
arose in light of the Covid-19 pandemic;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could be obtained in the 
absence of physical verification of assets through remote technology;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could be obtained to 
corroborate significant management

• estimates such as asset valuations and recovery of receivable balances; 
and evaluated management’s assumptions that underpin the revised 
financial forecasts and the impact on management’s going concern 
assessment.

• evaluated the material valuation uncertainties disclosures in Note 6 due to 
the impact of covid-19 has had on property, plant and equipment valuation 
and the valuation of assets managed by fund managers of Kent Pension 
Fund (pooled leasehold and freehold property investments). We referred to 
the material valuation uncertainty in our audit report as an emphasis of 
matter.

No issues were 
identified from the 
work performed in 
this area.

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

7

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and 
conclusions

Valuation of land and buildings 
You re-value your land and buildings on a rolling 
quinquennial basis. This valuation represents a significant 
estimate by management in the financial statements due to 
the size of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of this 
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

You have engaged the services of an expert to estimate the 
current and fair value as at 31 March 2020

We identified the valuation of land and buildings revaluations 
and impairments as a risk requiring special audit 
consideration.

As part of our audit work we have:

• evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation 
of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the 
scope of their work

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation 
expert

• wrote to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was 
carried out

• challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to 
assess

• completeness and consistency with our understanding

• tested revaluations made during the year to ensure that they have been 
input correctly into your asset register

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not 
revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves 
that these are not materially different to current value at year end.

• evaluated the disclosures in the financial statements in respect to the 
material valuation uncertainties disclosed in the valuer’s report due to the 
impact of covid-19 has had on property valuation as at the balance sheet 
date. We referred to the material valuation uncertainty in our audit report 
as an emphasis of matter.

No material issues 
were identified from 
the work performed in 
this area.

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

8

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks - continued
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and 
conclusions

Valuation of net pension liability
Your pension fund net liability, as reflected in the balance 
sheet as the net defined benefit liability, represents a 
significant estimate in the financial statements.

Your pension fund net liability is considered a significant 
estimate due to the size of the numbers involved (£55 
million in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020) and the 
sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of your pension fund net 
liability as a significant risk of material misstatement.
. 

As part of our audit work we completed;

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place 
by management to ensure that the Authority’s pension fund net liability 
is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated 
controls;

• evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management 
expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s 
work;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary 
who carried out the Authority’s pension fund valuation;

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided 
by the Authority to the actuary to estimate the liability;

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and 
disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the 
actuarial report from the actuary;

• undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 
assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary 
(as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures 
suggested within the report; and

• written to the auditor of Kent County Council Pension Fund as to the 
controls surrounding the validity an accuracy of membership data, 
contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension 
fund and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial 
statements.

No material issues were 
identified from the work 
performed in this area.

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

9

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks - continued
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and 
conclusions

Management override of internal controls
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed 
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is 
present in all entities.

We identified management override of controls as a risk 
requiring special audit consideration

As part of our audit work we completed;

• documented the design effectiveness of management controls over 
journals

• analysed the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting 
high risk unusual journals

• tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft 
accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical 
judgements applied made by management and consider their 
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence

• evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, 
estimates or significant unusual transactions.

No issues were 
identified from the work 
performed in this area.

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

10

Audit of the Financial Statements
Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 30 
November 2020.

Preparation of the financial statements
The Council presented us with draft financial statements in [month] in 
accordance with the agreed timescale, and provided a good set of working 
papers to support them. The finance team responded promptly and efficiently 
to our queries during the course of the audit. 

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements
We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council's Audit Board 
Committee on 21 October 2020. No significant issues were identified from 
our audit.

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report
We are also required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 
and Narrative Report. It published them on its website alongside the draft 
Statement of Accounts in line with the national deadlines. 

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant 
supporting guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent 
with  the financial statements prepared by the Council and with our 
knowledge of the Council. 

Certificate of closure of the audit
We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Dartford 
Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice. 
We certified closure of the audit within our audit report on 30 November 2020

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

11

Value for Money conclusion

Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit 
Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in April 2020 which 
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions 
and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people. 

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 
identify the risks where we concentrated our work.

We carried out an initial risk assessment in January 2019, and identified no 
significant risks in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the 
guidance contained in AGN03.

We continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our 
audit report, and did not identify any significant risks requiring us to perform 
further work

Overall Value for Money conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
for the year ending 31 March 2020.

Risks identified in our audit 
plan

How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Financial sustainability We considered the your arrangements in 
place for managing the impact of COVID-19 
on the council’s finances.

We reviewed your arrangements  monitoring 
the 19/20 budget and progress made against 
the 2020/21 budget.

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are 
satisfied that the Council had proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

12

A. Reports issued and fees
We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan 22 July 2020

Audit Findings Report 21 October 2020

Annual Audit Letter 23 December 2020 

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

13

Audit fee variation
As outlined in our audit plan, the 2019/20 scale fee published by PSAA 
of £35,732 assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly 
change. There are a number of areas where the scope of the audit has 
changed, which has led to additional work. These are set out in the 
following table.

The additional significant risk of Covid-19 and additional time it has 
taken to complete the audit as a result of remote working arrangements 
has meant an increase in time taken to complete the audit and 
increased volume of work and scope of our audit work to reflect this 
additional risk. This includes:

• Revisiting planning and risk assessment work

• Increased volume of work to gain assurance over management’s 
assumptions and estimates

• Financial resilience assessment included in our going concern and 
value for money work

• Increased time taken to deliver the audit as a result of remote 
working of all staff

A fee increase of 15% (£6,485) is proposed to cover the additional work 
incurred by Grant Thornton, taking our proposed fee to £49,717..

A. Reports issued and fees
We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Fees

Proposed fee 
per audit plan

Proposed 
final fee

Statutory audit 43,232 49,717

Total fees 43,232 49,717

Fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

Area Reason
Fee 
proposed 

Raising the bar The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has 
highlighted that the quality of work by all audit 
firms needs to improve across local
audit. This will require additional supervision 
and leadership, as well as additional challenge 
and scepticism in areas such as
journals, estimates, financial resilience and 
information provided by the entity.

2,500

Pensions – IAS 
19 

The Financial Reporting Council has 
highlighted that the quality of work by audit 
firms in respect of IAS 19 needs to improve 
across local government audits. Accordingly, 
we have increased the level of scope and 
coverage in respect of IAS 19 this year to 
reflect this.

1,750

PPE Valuation –
work of experts 

As above, the Financial Reporting Council has 
highlighted that auditors need to improve the 
quality of work on PPE valuations across the 
sector. We have increased the volume and 
scope of our audit work to reflect this. 

1,750

Accounting 
Standards

Note that PSAA’s original scale fee for this 
contract was set in March 2018, so any new 
developments since that time need to be 
included.

1,500

Total £7,500

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

14

A. Reports issued and fees continued

Fees for non-audit services

Service
Proposed 
Fees £

Audit related services 

- Certification of Housing Capital Receipts Grant 5,000

- Certification of Housing Benefit 23,000

Non- audit services
• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant 

Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table 
above summarises all non-audit services which were identified.

• We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived 
as a threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have 
ensured that appropriate safeguards are put in place. 

The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on 
the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  for Dartford Borough Council

Commercial in confidence

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



 
AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (January 2021) 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. The report provides Members of the Audit Board with an update on Internal 

Audit outcomes and activity since our last report in October 2020.  It also 
presents information to facilitate Members’ oversight of the Internal Audit 
function.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report and updates (attached 

as Appendix A to the report). 
2.2      That Members approve the removal of the COVID-19 Response audit from the      

Plan, due to Internal Audit’s conflict of interest 
2.3     That Members approve the replacement of the IT Service Desk audit with an 

audit of IT Change Control. 
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1 Reporting the outcomes of the internal audit service is a requirement 
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). As 
those charged with governance, the Audit Board is required through its 
Terms of Reference to provide oversight of the internal audit service. 

3.2 The Audit Board receives regular updates from the Internal Audit 
partnership. Principally the focus on these updates is around the 
progress made to deliver the audit plan, but also to track progress of 
audit actions, and to consider key insights from internal audit activities.  

3.3 The report also provides quality and performance information to allow 
Members oversight of the Internal Audit Service.  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

4.1 Not directly applicable although all Internal Audit work is designed to 
support the achievement of the Council’s objectives.  

 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible for 
the delivery of the audit service. Delivery of the 
Audit Plan is already approved within the 
Council’s budget and so needs no new funding. 

Page 31 Agenda Item 7



 
AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 

Legal Implications 
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015, the Council must ensure an effective 
system of Internal Audit.  

Staffing Implications Use of Internal Audit resources are set out in 
the report (Appendix A).  

Administrative 
Implications 

There are no direct administrative implications 
associated with this decision.  

Risk Assessment 
The audit plan is risk-based. As such, the 
projects outlined in the plan have been 
prioritised based on the outcomes of each risk 
assessment.  

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
7.1 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Update Report (January 2021) 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

Previous Audit Board reports 
as published on the Council 
website.  
 
Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (March 2017) 
 

21/10/20 
 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 
 

N/A 

 

Page 32Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Update 

Report 

 

January 2021 
  

Page 33 Agenda Item 7



 
 

Introduction 

1) Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance and consulting function. The shared team 
undertake reviews over the course of the year that are designed to evaluate and improve the Council’s 
internal control, governance and risk management processes.  
 

2) This report provides Members with an update on internal audit activity, and, crucially, its outcomes, 
against the Plan that was agreed by Members of this Board in July 2020.  
 

3) It also seeks to enable the Board to discharge its responsibility to provide oversight of the Internal 
Audit Partnership through performance information and an update on the self-assessment 
undertaken for the External Quality Assessment (due to commence in early January 2021).  

 

Internal Audit Progress Update 

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

4) Members will recall that the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan was divided into two; Plan A contains the 
audits that are priorities for completion and Plan B contains additional audits that will be completed 
if resources allow.  
 

5) An overall summary of Internal Audit progress against both Plans as at 22 December 2020 is shown 
below in Annex A. We have continued to make steady progress against Plan A with eight pieces of 
work now fully completed and a further four in fieldwork.   

 
6) At the time of writing this report, the pandemic situation continued to escalate, beginning with a 

national lockdown in November, followed by Tier 3 and Tier 4 restrictions in December. As a result, 
Internal Audit staff have once again been redeployed (albeit on a part time basis) to assist with the 
frontline response. All DBC staff within the Team together with the Audit Manager (an SDC employee) 
are triaging and actioning incoming contacts from vulnerable residents. In my view, it is likely that 
these redeployments will continue until the end of the financial year.  

 
7) There will inevitably be consequences for our ability to complete the current 2020/21 Internal Audit 

Plan in its entirety and in paragraph 10 I set out one audit already to be removed from the Plan. 
However, due to the amount of work already complete and in progress, and because the Annual 
Opinion is not required until July, I do not currently believe that the redeployments will materially 
impact on my ability to provide an overall opinion at the end of the year. Clearly, however, the 
situation will need to be monitored and Members will be updated in the next progress report.  
 

Amends to the 2020/21 Plan  

8) Within the Audit Plan report presented in July and the update report presented in October, I did note 
that the Audit Plan may have to be continually revised throughout the year to ensure its continued 
relevance and alignment with organisational need. Since the last update, we have made two 
amendments to the Internal Audit Plan. For expediency, these have already been discussed with the 
Chair outside of the Audit Board meeting.  

Page 34Agenda Item 7



 
 

9) The first amendment is the substitution of an audit of IT Service Desk for one of IT Change Control. 
The Service Desk audit was originally included on the plan to review changes that were due in the 
2020/21 financial year, however as these have not yet taken place there is limited value to an audit 
review at this time. Change Control within IT is a key governance process to ensure that changes are 
appropriately requested, prioritised, authorised, approved, scheduled and implemented, whilst 
keeping service disruption to a minimum.  This has become even more critical over the last year as the 
Council has become increasingly reliant on its IT systems for effective service delivery.  
 

10) The second amendment is the removal of the Covid-19 Response audit from the Plan. This change is 
less optimal as in my view, it is a key piece of work that the organisation should undertake to 
understand lessons learned for both business as usual activity and emergency response. However, 
due to the redeployment of staff into the frontline response, Internal Audit is no longer sufficiently 
independent to lead on this piece of work. We have raised this issue with the Strategic Directors and 
the s151 Officer who are considering alternative resources for the review. It is likely that this will take 
place in 2021/22 as the Council is still in the response phase. Further, we will consider if there are any 
aspects of the response that Internal Audit is able to review as part of our 2021/22 planning process.  
 

11) Members are asked to retrospectively approve these amendments to the Plan.  
 

Internal Audit Outcomes 

12) The table below shows all final audit reports issued and the outcomes since the last report to Audit 
Board in October 2020. Summaries of these audits can be found in Annex B. Definitions of our 
assurance ratings are provided in Annex E.  
 

13) One of the primary functions of Internal Audit is to provide assurance that identified risks are being 
effectively managed and to this end, the table below also provides links between Internal Audit work 
and the current Strategic Risk Register (which is presented as a separate agenda item). This does not 
mean that all controls have been covered as part of our audit but simply shows Members where they 
may be able to gain some assurance over the management of risk through our work.  
 

Audit Year Audit Assurance Level Links to Strategic Risk Register 

2020/21 Planning Enforcement Substantial CP1 - Effective consultation does not take 
place with service users 

2020/21 Dartford Town Against 
Crime 

Substantial SC01 - Public perception of increased crime 
levels 
SC02 - Unable to support ASB initiatives 
CP14 - Inadequate data sharing, data 
security and information management 

2020/21 Feeder Systems Full CP17 - Insufficient defences against fraud 
and corruption 

2020/21 Fraud Checklist N/A CP17 - Insufficient defences against fraud 
and corruption 

2020/21 Home Working 
Review 

N/A CP5 - Reduction in quality of services 
CP19 - Channel shift is not embedded across 
the Council 
 

Page 35 Agenda Item 7



 
 

14) The chart below shows a breakdown of results for all assurance pieces of work issued for the 2020/21 
financial year, including 3 pieces of work from 2019/20 that were finalised in 2020/21.  

 

 

 
15) The majority of assurance work was rated ‘Substantial’. This is a strong set of results indicating that 

the majority of associated risks are being managed. For the audits summarised in Annex B (those 
finalised since the last Audit Board), we have not raised any ‘Critical’ or ‘High’ priority issues. 
Importantly, our Home Working review, although advisory, found that the Council had been able to 
maintain services to the desired level whilst staff are working remotely and this is clearly supported 
by the results of ‘business as usual’ audits to date.   
 

16) Actions raised for the recent set of audits were largely for internal procedures although within the 
Dartford Town Against Crime (DTAC) review, we did also raise an action for clarity around governance 
of the partnership. Governance of partnerships will become more important over the next few months 
as the Council seeks to develop its relationships with a variety of external organisations and the 
Council should ensure that strong, effective governance is in place for all such partnerships, including 
clarity of roles, accountabilities and arrangements for data sharing.  

 
17) We also undertook an advisory piece of work on the counter fraud arrangements in place within the 

Council. This was an assessment against the 2020 Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Strategy. The 
areas of non-compliance raised largely stem from the absence of a comprehensive fraud risk 
assessment and therefore we cannot be assured that all fraud risks have been identified and that 
suitable arrangements are in place to proactively manage the significant ones. To rectify this, a risk 
assessment will be undertaken jointly by Internal Audit and Counter Fraud in the 2021/22 financial 
year and a fraud response plan will then be developed. The latter will be brought to Audit Board for 
approval.  

 
18) In addition to the substantive, planned pieces of work, we also investigated one whistleblowing 

allegation. Whilst there was no evidence of deliberate malpractice, the investigation did identify some 
areas of non-compliance which will be addressed through advice and training.  

 
19) Our main piece of advisory work in the forthcoming quarter will be to review the organisation’s overall 

risk management framework, in conjunction with senior management. This will be a key piece of work 

Limited
12%

Substantial
75%

Full
13%

ASSURANCE RATINGS

Limited Substantial Full

Page 36Agenda Item 7



 
 

to ensure that arrangements are robust and fit for the future to enable the organisation to effectively 
manage the range of risks that it faces.  

 

Follow Up 

20) Internal Audit follows up all Critical, High, Medium and Low priority findings as they fall due. Annex C 
shows the results of our follow up process since the last report to this Board. There are currently no 
Critical or High priority issues that are due and outstanding.  We have agreed to defer two actions this 
quarter but these are both ‘Low’ priority actions and therefore we do not consider non-
implementation to represent a significant risk. We have also closed one ‘Low’ priority action as not 
implemented; this is because despite best efforts, the manner in which information was captured on 
two systems did not facilitate easy reconciliation between them.  
 

21) Members may recall that at the last Audit Board we reported the Cyber Security audit which received 
‘Limited’ assurance. This audit included one high, three medium and three low priority actions. To 
date, we have closed one medium and one low priority action as implemented. I am also pleased to 
report that significant progress has been made against all other actions as Cabinet has approved 
funding to replace hardware, providing a Disaster Recovery solution.  Implementation is expected to 
be complete in February or March 2021.  

 

Internal Audit Performance 

22) Audit Board have an important role to play in monitoring the performance of Internal Audit, in order 
to assure themselves that Internal Audit makes an effective contribution to governance and that 
reliance can be placed on its conclusions.  
 

Key Performance Indicators 

23) To facilitate performance monitoring, a suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) exist and the results 
for October and November 2020 (the most recent available at the time of writing) are shown at Annex 
D. As reported to the last Audit Board, delivering audits to budget and in a timely manner is still a key 
challenge which is sometimes exacerbated as we strive to simultaneously improve the quality of audit 
work. We have begun our analysis to understand where and why budget over-runs occur and actions 
are incorporated into our action plan (paragraph 26 refers).  
 

24) Currently, no figure for compliance with PSIAS is shown as I am awaiting the results of the External 
Quality Assessment in order to populate this.  

 

External Quality Assessment (EQA) 

25) The External Quality Assessment (EQA) is an important mechanism for Members to receive assurance 
on the effectiveness of Internal Audit. At the time of writing this report, the Institute of Internal 
Auditors (the IIA) are still due to undertake the review as a validated self-assessment in January 2021. 
 

26) In preparation, I have undertaken my own full self-assessment of the Partnership’s compliance with 
the Standards.  As part of this review, I have identified some areas for development along with actions 
to address these. The areas for development are principally related to inconsistencies in working 

Page 37 Agenda Item 7



 
 

practices, timeliness of reporting and the need to link the overall annual opinion to organisational 
risks, strategies and objectives. There is also a need to complete an ‘assurance map’ for the 
organisation to identify all other potential sources of assurance and assess the extent to which Internal 
Audit can place reliance on these in order to minimise duplication. This exercise will be undertaken as 
part of the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. Once we have the results of the EQA, I will update the plan 
with any additional actions that are necessary and will then present the EQA report and action plan to 
the next available Audit Board.  

 

Conclusion  

27) The outcomes of Internal Audit work have been largely positive and where findings have highlighted 
potential weaknesses, officers have put plans in place to address. As an indication, my overall opinion 
at this stage of the year continues to be that there is “Substantial” assurance over systems of risk 
management, governance and control (See Annex E for current definitions).  
 

28) Clearly, these are volatile times for Councils up and down the country and it will therefore be 
important over the coming months that risks are continually acknowledged and assessed and that 
Internal Audit is able to respond in a dynamic way to the situation as it evolves. Currently, with 
redeployments to the frontline response, Internal Audit is limited in its ability to provide additional 
assurances above and beyond its existing capacity but I do not at this stage envisage that these 
redeployments will have a material detrimental impact on my ability to deliver an annual opinion for 
2020/21.  
 

29) We would like to thank Officers, Managers and Members for their ongoing support and co-operation 
to enable us to deliver our work, particularly in the light of the ongoing pandemic.  

 

  

Page 38Agenda Item 7



 
 

 Annex A – Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

Plan A Audit Title Type Current Status Assurance 

1 Cyber Security Compliance Complete Limited 

2 Rent Collection / Rent Arrears 
(Current Tenants) Finance Not yet started 

 

3 Waste Collection Contract Risk Based Planning  

4 Street Cleansing Risk Based Fieldwork  

5 Reactive Repairs Risk Based Not yet started  

6 New Build Capital Programme Finance Fieldwork  

7 Budget Setting Finance Fieldwork  

8 Feeder Systems & Journals Finance Complete Full 

9 Fraud Checklist Governance Complete Advisory 

10 Planning: Administration & Fees Risk Based Not yet started  

11 Housing Benefits Finance Planning  

12 Housing Allocations Policy Risk Based Complete Substantial 

13 Corporate Project Governance Governance Not yet started  

14 Planning Enforcement Risk Based Complete Substantial 

15 Local Air Quality Management Risk Based Fieldwork  

16 Contract Management Risk Based Planning  

17 Dartford Town Against Crime Risk Based Complete Substantial 

18 Service Desk (IT Support) – Now 
Change Control Risk Based Planning 

 

19 Facilities Management Risk Based Not yet started  

20  Counter Fraud Policy Work Governance Complete  Advisory 

21 

Covid-19: Lessons Learned Consultancy 

Removed from Plan 
due to conflict of 
interest 

 

22 Covid-19: Recovery Consultancy Not yet started  

23 (Plan Addition) – Home Working 
Review Consultancy Complete 

Advisory 

Plan B Audit Title Type Current Status  

1 Revenues and Benefits Shared 
Service Performance Finance Not yet started 

 

2 Recruitment Process Risk Based Not yet started  

3 Homelessness Prevention Consultancy Not yet started  

4 Emergency Planning Risk Based Not yet started  

5 Environmental Enforcement Risk Based Not yet started  

6 Employee Induction Advisory Not yet started  

7 Project Management Framework Governance Not yet started  

8 CRM System Risk Based Not yet started  

9 Markets Risk Based Not yet started  

10 Shared Service Value for Money Consultancy Not yet started  

11 KCC Funding Agreement – Fraud & 
Error Risk Based Not yet started 

 

  

Page 39 Agenda Item 7



Annex B - Summaries of Audit Reports issued 

Planning Enforcement (Substantial Assurance) – Issued in November 2020 

We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place over the administration and issuing 

of planning enforcement notices provide SUBSTANTIAL assurance.  

Our review found that effective arrangements are in place for the creation and issuing of 

Enforcement Notices. Our testing confirmed that Notices comply with the requirements of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 and are clearly recorded on the relevant information systems.  

Our review of two appeals upheld by the Planning Inspectorate confirmed that sufficient evidence 

was in place to support the Council’s decision to issue an enforcement notice. We also confirmed 

appropriate measures had been taken to address the issues raised by the appeals to establish any 

lessons to be learned going forward.  

The areas that need to be strengthened include updating existing procedure notes for enforcement 

and maintaining evidence to confirm that enforcement notices are reviewed by Legal Services ahead 

of being issued.  

A summary of the actions raised in the review are set out below: 

Priority Ranking 
Number of 

audit actions 
Actions 
agreed 

Risk accepted by 
management 

Medium 1 1 0 

Low 1 1 0 

Total 2 2 0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40Agenda Item 7



 
 

Dartford Town Against Crime (Substantial Assurance) – Issued in December 2020 

We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place over the facilitation and flow of 

communication between partners of the Dartford Town Against Crime (DTAC) scheme provide 

SUBSTANTIAL assurance.  

Overall we found the foundations in place to support DTAC and its Members are sound. Staff 

resources are shared between the Council and the scheme, which helps provide a communication 

link between the Members and its partners, in addition to the radio link and the intelligence system. 

However, the Council’s remit with regards to the scheme, and the provision of services is unclear 

where there is no service level agreement. We raised actions around partnership governance 

arrangements and access to information.   

The table below summarises the actions raised in the review:  

Priority Ranking 
Number of 

audit actions 
Actions 
agreed 

Risk accepted by 
management 

Medium 2 2 0 

Low 2 2 0 

Total 4 4 0 

 

Feeder Systems (Full Assurance) – Issued in December 2020 

We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place over feeder systems provide FULL 

assurance.  

This review provided assurance over the adequacy of controls to transfer information accurately 

and completely to the General Ledger from systems that are external to the core financial system. 

We mapped the process to upload data from the Council’s income management system (AIM) to 

the General Ledger, and the subsequent reconciliation process. Our testing included three of the 

Council’s funds: miscellaneous cash, car parks and sundry debtors.  

We found that the control framework was robust in design to prevent fraud or error. We identified 

no errors in our testing of key controls, and confirm that the system is sound. We did observe that 

current procedures could be updated to provide more accountability and improve efficiency of the 

manual receipting process. 

The table below shows the recommendation raised:  

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

Risk accepted by 
management 

Advisory 1 1 0 

Total 1 1 0 

 

Page 41 Agenda Item 7



 
 

Fraud Checklist- Shared Review (Not Assurance Rated) – Issued in December 2020 

The Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally 2020 (FFCL) publication is the updated counter fraud and 
corruption strategy for local government. It provides a blueprint for a coordinated response to fraud 
and corruption perpetuated against local authorities with the support of those at the top. The FFCL 
strategies and its tools provide ways for local authorities to develop and enhance their counter fraud 
response by ensuring that it is comprehensive and effective.   
 
The checklist comprises a total of 52 measures. We have assessed 40 out of 52 checks as either 
compliant or partially complaint. A full breakdown is given in the table below.  
 
The existing counter fraud arrangements at Dartford Borough Council are heavily focussed on 
identification of Council Tax and Business Rates with the Counter Fraud team undertaking this work. 
The Internal Audit team is also involved with counter fraud by undertaking internal investigations. 
 
The main finding is that a fraud risk assessment for the Council needs to be undertaken to identify all 
key fraud risks. From this risk assessment, a fraud response plan can be developed to address 
significant areas of potential fraud commensurate with available resources. 
 

Assessment FFCL Criteria 

Compliant 19 

Partially Compliant 21 

Not Met 12 

TOTAL 52 

Home Working Review (Not Assurance Rated) – Issued in December 2020 

Internal Audit carried out an advisory review to ascertain any impacts on service delivery or 

performance from the shift to remote working.  

Our review found that the Council’s remote working arrangements have not had a major impact on 

services’ performance and staff have adapted well to the new arrangements. The most significant 

drop in performance has been in income, such as Business Rates, enforcement and leisure facilities, 

which were impacted by Government decisions to either suspend or close facilities.  

There is a need to formalise the monitoring arrangements for 1-2-1s and meetings carried out “on-

line” to ensure all issues are captured, addressed and can be followed up at a future point. There is 

also a need to ensure there are clear working targets and objectives to ensure staff can be 

monitored and are fully aware of their roles and requirements. It was further noted that the Council 

has decided to not undertake formal appraisals of staff for this year due to the Pandemic.  

Issues were raised by services over the current telephony arrangements, Micollab, for remote 

working staff as this has caused some examples of missed calls.  

The major decision for the Council moving forward is whether to keep remote working and in what 

form. The staff survey showed a positive feel towards remote working and decisions will need to be 

made on a service and individual basis with management agreement. 

Page 42Agenda Item 7



 
 

Annex C -Audit actions  

We raise recommendations to assist management in addressing control failings, or to suggest service improvements following the results of 

our testing. In accordance with our follow-up process all audit actions are tracked and followed up when they fall due. The table below shows 

the current actions, and progress against implementation: 

Project  
  

Service  
Manager  

Report Issue 
Date & Rating  

Agreed actions 
in Final Report  

Actions due 
in Q3  

Not yet 
due  

Closed in 
Q3 

Agreed 
Deferrals this 

Qtr.  

Total 
actions 

closed to 
date  

Total actions 
outstanding1  

Post GDPR Review 2018/19  
Sarah Martin / IT 

Services  
June 2019  
Substantial 

5  0  1 (M)  0  0  4  1  

Building Control 2018/19 Mark Stoneham 
October 2019  
Substantial 

2 1 (L), 1 (M) 0 1 (M), 1(L) 0 2 0 

Corporate Complaints 
2019/20 

Marie Kelly-Stone 
March 2020 
Substantial 

3 0 1 (M) 0 0 2 1 

Accounts Receivable 
2019/20 

Tim Sams 
April 2020 

Full 
3 2 (L) 0 0 2 (L) 1 2 

Community Safety 2019/20 Mark Salisbury 
July 2020 

Full 
1 0 1 (L) 0 0 0 1 

HR Policy Compliance 
(Grievance & Disciplinary) 
2019/20 

Philippa Curtis 
August 2020 
Substantial 

1 1 (M) 0 1 (M) 0 1 0 

Garage Management 
2019/20 

Paul Koster 
August 2020 
Substantial 

3 1 (M), 1 (L) 1 (M) 1 (M), 1 (L) 0 2 1 

                                                           
1 Projects with 0 actions outstanding will be removed from future reports and be closed 

 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7



 
 

Animal Welfare (shared 
review) 2019/20 

Annie Sargent 
September 2020 

Substantial 
3 1 (M) 

1 (M), 1 
(L) 

1 (M) 0 1 2 

Cyber Security 2019/20 Sarah Martin 
September 2020 

Limited 
7 1 (M), 1(L) 

1 (H), 
2(M), 2 

(L) 
1 (M), 1 (L) 0 2 5 

Planning Enforcement 
2020/21 

Sonia Collins 
November 2020 

Substantial 
2 0 

1 (M), 1 
(L) 

0 0 0 2 

Dartford Town Against Crime Anthony Henley 
December 2020 

Substantial 
4 0 

2 (M), 2 
(L) 

0 0 0 4 

    TOTAL  34 10 17 8 2 15 19 

 

  P
age 44

A
genda Item

 7



 
 

Agreed Deferrals 
This table shows the three audit actions that have been deferred. Officers have been asked to provide an update on progress, and the reason 

for the deferral: 

Project Action (including priority) 
Original 

agreed date 
Revised 

date 
Reason for deferral 

No. of 
times 

deferred 

Accounts 
Receivable 2019/20  

Action 1: Review and refresh 

the guidance available to 

officers on the intranet (Low) 
30/9/20 31/3/21 

We have agreed to defer this action until the end of March 2021 as 
the new Finance Assistant who will be responsible for this action only 
started in post in November 2020.  

1 

Accounts 
Receivable 2019/20 

Action 3: Consider 

implementing a Corporate 

Recovery Policy.  (Low) 
30/11/20 31/3/21 

We have agreed to defer this action until the end of the financial year 
so that the new Directors can be involved in the development of the 
policy. 1 

 

Closed Action 
Project Action (including priority) Reason for closure Original agreed date 

Action 
closed 

Times 
deferred 

Building Control 2018/19 The Building Control Manager should 
establish a reconciliation process 
between Uniform and Cedar with the 
assistance of Financial Services. (Low) 
 

We have closed this low priority 
action as non-implemented, because 
of the difficulties reconciling payment 
descriptions between the two 
systems.  Work is continuing on this 
project, but Internal Audit will no 
longer follow up on this action. 

30/3/20, 31/8/20, 
31/10/20 

22/10/20 2 

 

 

 

 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7



 
 

Annex D – Key Performance Indicators for Q3 Progress (October and November) 

Finance: Associated performance indicators Oct - Nov 2020 Internal processes: Associated performance indicators Q3 (Oct – Nov) 

F1: Projects Completed within budgeted days 

Indicator measures any variance between the days agreed 

on the final brief vs. the actual time coded on Teammate 

TEC 

0/1 

0% 

I1: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT and FINAL Audit 

Brief  

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our project planning 

and time taken to prepare the work programme 

9.5 days 
(average) 

F2: Chargeable days (time) 

Indicator measures the actual chargeable activities against 

the assumptions made in the audit plan 
Average 

73% 

I2: Time taken between the issue of the FEEDBACK and DRAFT 

report  

Indicator measures the currency of our audit finding and 

effective engagement between Auditors and Clients  

14 day 
(average) 

F3: PSIAS conformance 

Indicator measures effectiveness of the Quality Assurance & 

Improvement Programme (QIAP) to ensure compliance with 

professional Standards.  

TBC 

I3: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT report and FINAL 

report 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our process to finalise 

audit reports and issue the report in a timely manner  

13 days 
(average) 

Client satisfaction: Associated performance indicators Oct - Nov 2020 Learning & Development: Associated performance indicators Q3 (Oct – Nov)  

C1: Overall client satisfaction  with the audit experience  

Indicator measures overall satisfaction  levels, taking into 

account  the audit approach, conduct, findings and 

competence of the auditor 

4/4 

100% 

L1: Audit actions fully implemented within agreed timescales 

Indicator measures the successful implementation of audit 

actions and the effectiveness of our follow-up process 

DBC 4/5 
80% 

 

C2: Respondents agreement with the audit actions 

Indicator measures Client agreement to the audit findings 

and resulting actions from our audit work 
2/2 

100% 

L2: Training & development days  

Indicator measures our investment and time spent on training 

and development against the assumptions made in the audit 

plan 

28.17 Days  
(of 58 days) 

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 7



 
 

Annex E - Definitions of Assurance ratings: 

OPINION DEFINITIONS 

Full Assurance 

(no High or Medium 
priority actions) 

A sound framework of control is in place that meets Council or 
service objectives. All expected controls tested are in place 
and are operating effectively. 

A review with this level of assurance will generally have no 
actions, or very few LOW priority actions. Agreed actions will 
be followed up as they fall due. 

Substantial Assurance 

(no High priority actions) 

There is generally a sound framework of control in place that 
meets Council or service objectives. However, there are 
isolated weaknesses in design of controls, or inconsistent 
application of controls, which puts the achievement of a limited 
number of objectives at risk. 

A review of this level of assurance may raise a number of 
MEDIUM priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up as 
they fall due.  

Limited Assurance 

There are weaknesses within the framework of control or 
evidence of non-compliance with Council procedures or good 
practice, which puts the achievement of the Council’s or 
service objectives in many of the areas reviewed at risk. 

A review with this level of assurance will raise one or more 
HIGH priority actions. Actions with a high priority should be 
acted on as soon as practical and will be followed up as soon 
as they fall due. 

No Assurance 

Key controls are absent from the framework of control. There 
are fundamental weaknesses identified with both the design 
and operation of the system under review. As a result, it is 
unlikely that Council or service objectives will be achieved. 

A review of this level may include a number of HIGH or 
CRITICAL priority actions. Actions of a critical level will be 
reported as soon as they are identified and escalated to the 
relevant Senior Manager. Actions to address the findings will 
be followed up as soon as they fall due.  

   

 

 

 

Page 47 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



                

AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 
 
STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER REVIEW 
 

 
1.      Summary 

 
1.1. To present to the Board the updated Strategic Risk Register for approval. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1 That the Strategic Risk Register, at Appendix A to the report, be approved. 

 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
 

3.1 The Council’s overall risk strategy is in the process of being reviewed and will 
be presented to the Board later in the year. However, due to the emerging risks 
associated with COVID19 and the new EU-UK partnership post Brexit, it has 
been necessary to update the Strategic Risk Register to reflect these risks and 
the serious implications they could potentially hold for the Council. 
 

3.2 The Strategic Risk Register sets out those risks that could prevent the Council 
from achieving its Corporate Plan objectives. It also shows the controls put in 
place to help mitigate those risks. The updated register is attached at Appendix 
A, for the Board’s approval. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

 
 Not applicable 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment As detailed in the Strategic Risk 
Register 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register 
   
 

Page 49 Agenda Item 8



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
22 January 2020 

 
 

  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Sarah 
Martin 

Management 
Team 

N/A 

      

 

Page 50Agenda Item 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
 
THEME:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
STRATEGIC AIM: TO ENSURE THAT REGENERATION IN DARTFORD IS SUSTAINABLE AND OF BENEFIT TO ALL OF OUR COMMUNITIES 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: 
 
1. Improve the quantity and range of jobs in the Borough. 

2. Ensure jobs growth and housing delivery are balanced. 

3. Improve the economic performance of the Town Centre.  

4. Ensure the delivery of timely transport infrastructure. 

 

REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 
RATING 

MITIGATION/  
CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ER1 Regeneration of 
Dartford may 
not be achieved 

 
 
 

Reduced external 
investment and 
Government 
funding affecting 
development 

Failure to deliver 
planned projects 
Uncertainty over 
future projects 
Unable to attract 
partners/developers 
Potential for 
infrastructure to 
deteriorate 
Reputational 
damage 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 

  

      

 
IMPACT 

 

Inform Government. 
Invitations to Ministers 
etc. 
Work through TGKP to 
deliver stronger message. 
Work with LEP/KCC. 
Promotion and marketing 
of Dartford. 
Work with developer of 
Lowfield Street.  
Work with Muse to 
progress the Co-op 
development. 
Complete Town Centre 
improvement programme 
Progress Stone Lodge 
development. 
Complete Acacia site 
improvements. 
Work with EDC. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
 
Sonia Collins 
Adrian Gowan 
(Acacia) 
 
John Blighton 
(Muse) 
Lewis Kirnon 
(promotion 
and marketing 
of Dartford) 
 
Keith Longley 
( Town Centre 
improvement 
programme) 

+

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/  
CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ER2 Economic 
performance of 
Town Centre 
deteriorates 
 

Businesses suffer 
significant 
financial loss as a 
result of COVID 

 

Closure of high 
street shops 
Negative impact on 
local jobs 
Loss of business 
rates income leads 
to budget pressures 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 
  

  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Promotion of Business 
Rate Grants and 
Discretionary Business 
Grants 
Promotion of business 
advice and support to 
affected businesses 
Creation of new Economic 
Development Manager 
post to lead on promotion 
and marketing of town 
centre offer. 
Delivery of new housing 
development in and 
around town centre. 
Private investment in 
retail and leisure. 
Progress Co-op 
development to improve 
evening economy offer. 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Lewis Kirnon 
 
Sonia Collins 
John Blighton 
(Co-op) 

ER3 Physical 
structure of the 
town centre  
adversely 
affects appeal of 
town centre and 
its regeneration 

Lack of 
investment in 
town centre 
physical structure 

Shoppers move 
their trade 
elsewhere 
More shops close 
Negative impact on 
local jobs 
Loss of business 
rates income 
New investment not 
attracted 

  

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Delivery of Town Centre 
improvement scheme 
Complete Acacia site 
improvements. 
Work with developer of 
Lowfield Street. 
Work with Muse on Co-op 
site development. 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sonia Collins 
Adrian Gowan 
(Acacia) 
 
John Blighton 
(Co-op) 
 
Keith Longley 
(Town Centre 
improvements) 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/  
CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ER4 Transport 
infrastructure is 
not delivered 

 
 

The major 
transport 
interventions of 
A282 Junction 1a 
improvements 
and the Lower 
Thames Crossing 
are not 
implemented 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Negative impact on 
regeneration 
projects 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

A Fastrack Advisory 
Board has been set up to 
support the ongoing 
improvement & delivery of 
the Fastrack service. 
Work with Highways 
England,  KCC, TGKP 
and Thames Estuary 
Growth Board in support 
of the Lower Thames 
Crossing 
Work with Highways 
England, KCC and 
neighbouring authorities 
to identify, design and 
fund an improvement 
scheme for Jct 1a of the 
A282 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
 
Sonia Collins 
Lukman 
Agboola 

ER5 Delays in 
delivering Lower 
Thames 
Crossing 

Increased 
congestion within 
Dartford 

Increased air 
pollution due to 
traffic congestion 
Negative impact on 
health of residents 
Reduced resilience 
of road network in 
and around 
Dartford impacts on 
existing 
businesses, 
investment and 
regeneration 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Continued lobbying of 
government and 
Highways England to 
speed up delivery of 
crossing 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sonia Collins 
 
Lukman 
Agboola 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/  
CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ER6 Lack of 
adequate 
parking 
provision to 
support town 
centre 

Some of existing 
car parks are 
closed and no 
replacement 
parking provided 
to support town 
centre 

Reduced level of 
trade for town 
centre businesses 
Reduced car 
parking income 
Decline of town 
centre 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Review of car park 
provision. 
Progression of Acacia site 
redevelopment to replace 
some car parking 
provision within the town 
centre that is scheduled to 
be lost. 
Some car parking 
provision within Co-op 
project. 
Review car parking fee 
strategy. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sonia Collins 
Adrian Gowan 
(Acacia site) 
 
John Blighton 
(Co-op) 
 
Lukman 
Agboola 

ER7 Potential for 
London Resort 
proposals to  
have a negative 
impact on our 
communities 

 

Proposed 
Paramount 
scheme does not 
adequately 
address traffic 
management 
issues, 
environmental 
Impacts, amenity 
impacts on local 
residents (noise, 
parking, etc) 
housing need and 
workforce 
requirement and 
does not provide 
local benefits 
through skills 
delivery and 
opportunities for 
local businesses 
 
 

Increased traffic 
congestion within 
Dartford 
Lack of affordable 
housing within 
Borough due to 
increased housing 
prices 
Nuisance for local 
residents 
Disconnect 
between skills and 
employment 
opportunities  

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

    
 
  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Work with partner local 
authorities and supporting 
advisors to encourage 
developer to improve 
assessment and 
understanding of impacts. 
Work with partner local 
authorities and supporting 
advisors to encourage 
developer to commit to 
suitable mitigations and 
benefits.   
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
 
Sonia Collins 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 
RATING 

MITIGATION/  
CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ER9 Reduced 
economic 
performance of 
local businesses 
due to food 
safety and 
health and 
safety issues 

The food safety 
and health and 
safety regulation 
resources are 
reduced 

Town centre 
businesses become 
unsafe 
Reputational 
damage 
Reduced level of 
trade 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

EH structure to be agreed 
following SDC pulling out 
of shared service. This 
will need to build in 
sufficient capacity based 
on number of commercial 
premises  and 
reactive/proactive 
enforcement work 
required. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Annie Sargent 

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

THEME:   HEALTH AND WELL-BEING 
 
STRATEGIC AIM: TO REDUCE OVERALL HEALTH INEQUALITY IN DARTFORD AND TO PROVIDE FOR A RICH AND VARIED QUALITY OF LIFE 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: 
 
1. Increase the opportunities for participating in sporting, cultural and leisure activities. 

 
2. Reduce overall health inequalities in the Borough. 
 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HW1 Increased 
health 
inequalities 
within Borough 

 
 
 

Inability to target 
key groups 
suffering poorer 
health or/and 
target groups 
don’t engage. 
Cuts in Govt. PH 
funding to KCC 
and onward to 
Dartford. 
Strategic 
commissioning of 
prevention 
programmes and 
interventions not 
‘joined up’. 
Demographic 
change redirects 
health services 
funding 
COVID results in 
increased need 
for mental health 
support 
 

Increased 
pressure on other 
services and 
supporting 
organisations 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

       

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Work with partners 
(DGS CCG and Kent 
PH) through DGS 
HWB to identify key 
groups ‘at risk’ of poor 
health.  
JSNA to establish 
impact and 
implications for future 
services. 
Work with Kent PH as 
strategic 
commissioners to 
develop, coordinate, 
deliver joined-up 
health prevention 
programmes and 
interventions. 
Continue to grant fund 
organisations which 
support better physical 
and mental health 
outcomes. 
Work with Muse on 
delivery of wellbeing 
centre as part of Co-op 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

       

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sheri Green 

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

project 

 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/  
CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HW2 Non-delivery of 
health 
prevention 
intervention 
programme 
 

Cut in 
Government 
funding for public 
health. 
Short term nature 
of funding impacts 
on stability and 
sustainability of 
health prevention 
intervention 
programme. 
Failure of 
commissioning 
approach  

Negative impact 
on health and 
wellbeing of 
residents put 
pressure on other 
services. 
Negative impact 
on acute services 
Reputational 
damage. 
Increased health 
inequalities within 
borough 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Work through new 
partnerships/ 
developing 
relationships to press 
for longer term 
arrangements. 
Public health 
prevention targets 
have been 
incorporated into 
Fairfield management 
contract. 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

       

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sheri Green 

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/  
CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HW3 Unable to 
increase 
participation in 
sports, culture 
and active 
leisure activities 
and play 

 

Fairfield reduce 
leisure offer due 
to COVID 
restrictions 
Orchard Theatre 
closed due to 
COVID 
restrictions 
Loss of playing 
fields and/or 
failure to deliver 
playing fields in 
tandem with 
significant new 
developments. 
Loss/deterioration 
of children’s 
playgrounds 
 
 

Negative impact 
on health and 
wellbeing of 
residents put 
pressure on other 
services 
Reputational 
damage 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Work with Places 
Leisure through the 
COVID crisis to ensure 
they are able to 
continue to provide 
leisure offer, albeit 
somewhat restricted. 
Work with Orchard 
Theatre to ensure they 
are able to re-open 
when social distancing 
restrictions ease. 
Work with EDC to 
ensure planned 
playing fields in EDC 
area are delivered. 
Work with developers 
to ensure playing fields 
and play areas are 
protected/delivered 
and maintained. 
Use of grants to 
promote health 
outcomes. 
Work with commercial 
and community groups 
to widen access to 
culture & arts. 
Continue to deliver a 
range of free and paid 
for events throughout 
the year once COVID 
restrictions are eased. 
Promotion of Art 
Gallery at the Dartford 
Library. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

       

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sarah Martin 
 
Adrian 
Gowan 
 
 
 
Sonia 
Collins 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HW4 Leisure facilities 
close 

 
 
 

Unsustainable 
levels of financial 
loss in Council 
leisure facilities 
due to COVID 
restrictions, 
including those 
handed over to 
local clubs 

 

Negative impact 
on health and 
wellbeing of 
residents put 
pressure on other 
services 
Reputational 
damage 
Loss of revenue 

 
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Work with Places 
Leisure through the 
COVID crisis to ensure 
they are able to 
continue to provide 
leisure offer, albeit 
somewhat restricted. 
 
Work closely with Judo 
Club, Football Club, 
Cricket Club, Rugby 
Club. 
 
Continue to lobby 
Government for 
financial support for 
the leisure industry 
due to COVID 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sarah Martin 
 
Adrian 
Gowan 

HW5 Darent Valley 
Hospital unable 
to cope with 
increase in 
patient numbers 

Case numbers 
relating to COVID 
increase to the 
extent that it 
impacts on 
hospital capacity. 
Increase in 
population due to 
new housing build 
threatens 
services. 
Rationalisation of 
NHS estate 
closes 
neighbouring 
facilities further 
increasing 
demand on DVH. 

Patients are 
directed to a 
hospital further 
away. 
Negative impact 
on health and 
wellbeing of 
residents. 
Pressure on other 
services. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Support Dartford & 
Gravesham NHS Trust 
and CCG (as 
commissioners of 
services) and ensure 
DAs and DFGs used 
effectively to reduce 
demand and ‘bed 
blocking’. 
Support CCG and 
EDC in lobbying for 
additional funding. 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sheri Green 
 
 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HW6 Shortage of GPs Increase in 
population due to 
housing 
development but 
insufficient 
increase in GPs 
to cope with 
increased 
demand 

Negative impact 
on health of 
residents. 
Pressure on acute 
services. 

 
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

    
 
  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Work closely with CCG 
to understand 
requirement for 
additional GP services 
arising from new 
development.   
Work with EDC and 
CCG to ensure 
sufficient GP provision 
within the Garden City,    
Work with CCG to 
understand most 
suitable way of 
supporting additional 
GP provision through 
CIL and other 
developer 
contributions.   
Work with all Kent 
authorities to address 
GP shortages in area 

 
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sheri Green 
 
 
 
 
 
Sonia 
Collins 
Stephen 
Dukes 
 
 

 

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

THEME:   SAFER COMMUNITIES 
 
STRATEGIC AIM:   TO CREATE A SAFER BOROUGH IN WHICH TO LIVE, WORK AND SOCIALISE 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: 
 

1. To use the Council’s statutory functions to increase public safety in the Borough. 
 

2. To reduce anti-social behaviour. 

 
3. To increase public perception of the Borough as a safe place. 

 

REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 
RATING 

MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

SC1 Public 
perception of 
increased crime 
levels 

 
 
 

Media reporting of 
crime has an 
adverse effect on 
public perception 
 

Increased fear of 
crime within the 
borough 
Reputational 
damage 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Promotional materials 
to outline successes. 
Work through Elders 
Forum, Parish 
Councils, Residents 
Groups etc. 
Regular liaison with 
Media. 
Use of CCTV. 
Successful funding 
bids have been 
granted by the PCC to 
bolster CCTV 
capability & DTAC 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Mark 
Salisbury 
(Tony 
Henley) 

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

SC2 Unable to 
support ASB 
initiatives 

 
 

Reduction in 
funding impacts 
on neighbourhood 
police resources 
& sustainability of 
local initiatives to 
counter ASB 
Inconsistent and 
changed 
definitions of ASB  
Continual shift in 
public perception 
as to what 
constitutes ASB 

Increased levels 
of anti-social 
behaviour 
Reputational 
damage 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Information/advice to 
PCC in support of 
continued grant 
funding. 
Prioritisation of 
activities, and joined-
up working to 
maximise outcomes 
from budget. 
Continue to utilise 
Community Protection 
Warnings and PSPOs 
to reduce ASB 
Successful funding 
bids have been 
granted by the PCC to 
bolster CCTV 
capability & DTAC 
towards reducing ASB 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Mark 
Salisbury 
(Tony 
Henley) 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

SC3 Reduced public 
safety  levels 
(food and H&S) 

The 
Environmental 
Health staffing 
resources are 
reduced to a level 
where public 
safety is reduced 
in the borough. 
Lack of legal 
capacity could 
mean prosecution 
is not possible for 
offenders. 

Public safety is 
reduced 
Enforcement 
powers 
diminished 
leading to 
reduced public 
safety 
Negative publicity 
Reputational 
damage 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

As part of set up of 
new EH Team, 
Management to 
ensure that inspection 
resource is appropriate 
to reactive/proactive 
workload and 
enforcement work 
required. 
Discuss potential 
complex cases early 
with Legal team. 
Report to management 
team on likely costs 
where known. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Annie 
Sargent 

 
 
 
 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

THEME:   ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY 
 
STRATEGIC AIM: TO PROMOTE AN ENVIRONMENT WHICH IS ATTRACTIVE, WITH IMPROVED AIR QUALITY AND WHICH PROVIDES A REALISTIC CHOICE OF 

TRAVEL OPTIONS 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: 
 
1. Reduce carbon emissions and improve air quality in the Borough 

2. Ensure that development in Dartford is sustainable, with high standards of design, layout and water/energy efficiency. 

3. Minimise the amount of waste going to landfill. 

4. Ensure a high quality street scene. 

REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 
RATING 

MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROL 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ES1 
 

Lack of 
sufficient 
sustainable 
transport 
options 

 

Failure to deliver 
transport 
infrastructure 
improvements 
Insufficient modal 
shift to 
sustainable 
transport options. 
Increasing 
pressures from 
carbon reduction 
demands. 
 

Increasing levels 
of congestion 
Potential 
developers put off 
from locating to 
Dartford 
Negative impact 
on businesses, 
communities and 
individuals 
Negative impact 
on recruitment 
and retention 
Negative impact 
on health and 
wellbeing 
Carbon reduction 
demands not met 
Reputational 
damage 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Advice to Govt., 
Highways England, 
KCC, Ministers for 
solutions. 
Promote Crossrail. 
Implementation of 
town centre transport 
projects. 
Ensure travel plans 
promoting sustainable 
forms of transport are 
implemented for major 
developments. 
Work with KCC, EDC 
and GBC to improve 
and extend Fastrack 
network. 
Work with partners to 
expedite Lower 
Thames Crossing.  
Develop further 
sustainable transport 
projects, in particular 
walking and cycling 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
 
Sonia 
Collins 
Lukman 
Agboola 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROL 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ES2 Unsustainable 
housing 
developments 

 
 

Infrastructure 
provision not 
matching housing 
growth 

 

Increased 
congestion 
Insufficient 
numbers of 
schools/doctor 
surgeries to 
support new 
housing  

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Seek additional 
funding. 
Prioritise delivery 
programme. 
Work with partners. 
Consider funding 
though planning 
agreements. 
Collect and allocate 
CIL. 

 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sonia 
Collins 

ES3 Unable to 
deliver agreed 
waste 
efficiencies 
(more recycling, 
more 
composting, 
less general 
waste) 

Insufficient 
support from local 
population  for 
increasing 
recycling quantity 
and quality and 
for waste 
minimisation 
 

Recycling targets 
not met 
Increased costs of 
waste disposal 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

 
  

    

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Promotional materials. 
Information and advice 
provided for residents. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

 
  

    

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Dave 
Thomas 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROL 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

ES4 Increased 
carbon 
emissions 

Increased carbon 
emissions from 
traffic 

Negative impact 
on health and 
wellbeing 
Carbon reduction 
demands not met 
Reputational 
damage 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Continue to monitor air 
quality. 
Implement measures 
within Council’s control 
which have a positive 
impact upon air 
quality. 
Work with partners to 
expedite Lower 
Thames Crossing. 
Transport Strategy to 
set out how 
compliance with EU 
NO2 thresholds will be 
achieved. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Annie 
Sargent 
 
Sonia 
Collins 
 
Lukman 
Agboola 

 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
THEME:   HOUSING & STRONGER COMMUNITIES 
 
STRATEGIC AIM: TO FACILITATE QUALITY, CHOICE AND DIVERSITY IN THE HOUSING MARKET, ASSIST IN MEETING HOUSING NEED IN DARTFORD AND 

DELIVER HIGH QUALITY SERVICES TO SERVICE USERS. TO CREATE STRONG AND SELF RELIANT COMMUNITIES. 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: 
 
1. To work towards meeting the housing needs of the Borough. 

 
2. To provide high quality housing services and to strive to improve the quality and condition of the Borough’s private rented housing sector. 

 
3. To promote self-reliant communities. 

 

REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 
RATING 

MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HS1 Affordable 
housing not 
delivered 

 

Increased 
construction costs 
and current 
economic 
instability 
affecting capacity 
of developers to 
deliver affordable 
housing targets. 
Implications of the 
Housing and 
Planning Act on 
the Council’s 
ability to deliver 
new affordable 
housing of all 
tenures. 
Implications of 
government’s 
proposed early 
changes to 
planning guidance 
on ability to 

Targets not met 
Unable to meet 
housing demand 
More Government 
emphasis on 
homes to buy, 
which may be out 
of the financial 
reach of those in 
housing need, 
and this in turn 
could lead to a 
lack of affordable 
rental units. 
Proposed 
changes to 
planning system 
preventing 
delivery of 
affordable 
housing on 
development 
below 50 units. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 

  
  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Seek alternative forms 
of housing delivery. 
Ensure the Council is 
flexible when 
considering 
development 
proposals. 
Ensure there are 
clauses within 
planning agreements 
to re-assess the 
financial viability of 
developments in later 
phases. 
Progress with Council 
New Build programme. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 
  

  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sonia 
Collins 
Peter Dosad 

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

deliver affordable 
housing. 

 
 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HS2 Lack of 
cohesion 
between 
existing and 
new 
communities  

 
 
 

Existing 
communities not 
benefitting from 
regeneration. 
Separate/non-
integrated 
communities 
forming. 
Negative impact 
of Brexit on 
community 
cohesion 

Lack of 
community 
cohesion 
Increased 
tension, levels of 
ASB 
Transient 
communities 
Lack of 
social/community 
and support 
networks forming 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

New MT structure will 
give priority to working 
closely with community 
and voluntary sectors 
to improve community 
cohesion 
Liaise with 
stakeholders. Work 
with KCC and Health 
Authority. 
Work with EDC. 
Work with KCC and 
Arriva re local 
transport. 
Ensure affordable 
housing is integrated 
within new 
developments. 
Ensure new 
development ‘eats its 
own smoke’, through 
funding for required 
infrastructure. 
Encourage community 
facilities as part of 
major new 
developments. 
Provide grants to 
encourage community 
cohesion through the 
Community Grant and 
Salute to Youth 
schemes. 
Continue to 
deliver/support 
Dartford Festival, St 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

 
  

    

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sonia 
Collins 
Peter Dosad 
 
Adrian 
Gowan 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

Georges Day and the 
Festival of Light to 
encourage community 
cohesion 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HS3 Planned 
housing 
improvements 
not delivered 

 
 
 

Council contractor 
unable to deliver 
planned housing 
improvement 
works. 
Negative impact 
of rent setting 
policy, welfare 
reform changes 
and other 
changes from 
Housing and 
Planning Act on 
HRA business 
plan. 

 

Deteriorating 
housing stock 
Unable to 
maintain decent 
homes standard 
Tenant 
dissatisfaction 
Reputational 
damage 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

Establish forward 
programme of works, 
with H&S and DHS 
prioritised and 
monitored. 
Establish fall back 
arrangements. 
Regular modelling of 
HRA business plan 
taking into account 
changes in national 
housing policy. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 

  
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Peter Dosad 

HS4 Increase in 
homelessness 

 
 

Getting rough 
sleepers off the 
streets initiative 
as part of COVID 
response 
Increased 
pressure on 
housing from 
movements into 
the area including 
migrants. 
Increase in 
placements by 
London boroughs 
within Dartford 

 

Increase in 
number of 
referrals 
Lack of suitable 
temporary 
accommodation. 
Increased costs of 
temporary 
accommodation, 
Increased need to 
house outside of 
Borough. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 
  

  

      

      
 

IMPACT 
 

Prioritise local housing 
needs. 
Increase stock through 
conversation of SH 
and new build. 
Offer housing options 
advice. 
Work with partners to 
reduce worklessness 
and other causes of 
homelessness. 
Procure additional 
units for TA. 
Creation of housing 
hub to provide advice 
and support. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

       

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Peter Dosad 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HS5 Failure to 
ensure high 
quality private 
sector housing 
within borough 

 

Private sector 
stock condition 
survey identifies 
higher than 
expected number 
of vulnerable 
households in 
non-decent stock, 
with limited 
investment to 
rectify 

Supply of high 
quality private 
sector housing 
does not meet 
demand 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Seek alternative 
funding sources. 
Advisory packs etc for 
owners with 
prioritisation of work. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Peter Dosad 

HS6 Failure to deliver 
housing new 
build 
programme 

Unable to spend 
141 receipt within 
timetable. 
Insufficient HRA 
balances to 
support 
programme 

141 receipts have 
to be repaid 
Supply of housing 
does not meet 
demand 
New houses 
targets not met 
Reputational 
damage 

 
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Procurement methods 
under continual 
review. 
Ensure ready to 
deploy contingency 
option of buying 
houses on the open 
market. 
Regular monitoring of 
HRA business plan. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Peter Dosad 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HS7 Insufficient 
private housing 
delivery to meet 
local housing 
need 

Identified housing 
sites do not come 
forward or are 
delayed 

Newly forming 
households 
unable to buy 
homes in the 
Borough. 
Move out of the 
Borough – 
breakdown of 
support networks. 
Breakdown of 
stable and 
resilient 
communities. 
Increased 
pressure on 
Council stock. 
Increased costs of 
private sector 
rents. 
Increase in 
homelessness 
referrals. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Provide sufficient 
planning permissions. 
Work with developers 
and EDC to remove 
barriers to delivery. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

 
  

    

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
 
Sonia 
Collins 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

HS8 Insufficient 
school places to 
support housing 
developments 

Housing 
development 
happens without 
an associated 
increase in school 
places 

Children have to 
travel long 
distances to 
school. 
Increased 
pressure on 
school buses. 
Increased traffic 
congestion. 
Negative impact 
on health and 
wellbeing of 
children. 
Negative impact 
on community 
cohesion. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Work with KCC around 
school provision. 
Work with EFA on 
completion of new 
secondary school on 
the Stone Lodge site. 
Work with developers 
through planning 
agreements and the 
collection and 
allocation of CIL. 
Work with EDC. 
Work with KCC to 
deliver new primary 
school in Stone. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

 
  

    

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Sonia 
Collins 

 
Stephen 
Dukes 

 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
 
 
 
THEME:   A COUNCIL PERFORMING STRONGLY 
 
STRATEGIC AIM: TO PROVIDE HIGH QUALITY SERVICES THAT REFLECT PUBLIC ASPIRATIONS AND DEMONSTRATE IMPROVEMENT 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: 
 
1. Deliver high quality services, offering value for money and demonstrating a culture of continuous improvement. 

 
2. Inform and consult residents and stakeholders about Council services. 

 
 

REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 
RATING 

MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP1 Effective 
consultation 
does not take 
place with 
service users 

Stakeholders do 
not engage in 
consultation 
Consultation with 
stakeholders is 
not undertaken or 
is not appropriate 
Consultation 
results are not 
considered fully 

Mismatch 
between the 
services provided 
and the needs 
and expectations 
of users. 
Potential legal 
action against the 
Council for not 
undertaking 
appropriate 
consultation. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 
IMPACT 

 

Promotional 
marketing. 
Consultation and 
Engagement Strategy 
is embedded. 
Consultations carried 
out where required. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

 
  

    

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Adrian 
Gowan 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP2 Increasing 
financial 
pressure on 
budget, 
particularly as a 
result of COVID 
 
 

Insufficient 
Government 
funding to cover 
COVID losses 
Replacement of 
Government grant 
with business 
rates retention.  
Funding reforms 
Uncertainty 
around future of 
NHB 
Increased 
demand for 
certain services. 
 

Very difficult 
decisions around 
funding of 
services with 
potential negative 
service changes. 
Quality of service 
compromised. 
Negative publicity. 
Reputational 
damage. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 
  

  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Worst case financial 
profiling and strong 
forecasting. 
Set targets for cost 
reduction. 
Review if services 
needed and consider 
alternative delivery 
methods. 
Redesign service 
delivery. 
Seek other sources of 
income. 
Maximise council tax 
and business rate 
base. 
Participate in Kent BR 
pool & pilot. 
Engagement with 
communities/voluntary 
sector to help maintain 
service provision. 
Work with KCC and 
Government 
departments to provide 
the necessary 
infrastructure to 
encourage new 
businesses to come to 
Dartford 
Provide support to 
existing businesses to 
encourage them to 
stay in the Borough 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
  

  
    

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Tim Sams 
 
 Sonia Collins 
(for 
infrastructure 
to support 
businesses) 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP3 Brexit has a 
negative impact 
on the Council’s 
finances 

Negative impact 
on financial 
markets; 
Brexit could lead 
to a recession 

Reduced 
investment 
income; 
Recession could 
have negative 
impact on local 
businesses 
leading to a 
reduction in 
business rates 
income; 
Recession could 
lead to an 
increase in 
demand for some 
services; 
Recession could 
have negative 
impact on other 
Council income 
streams; 
Threat of Brexit 
on future EU 
funding for 
projects 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 
  

  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Regular monitoring of 
budget position; 
Regular monitoring of 
impact of Brexit on top 
20 business rate 
payers; 
Identification of 
savings or income 
generating 
opportunities to help 
balance the budget; 
Close monitoring of 
treasury management 
position and stability of 
financial institutions 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sarah Martin 

CP4 Incorrect budget 
assumptions 
made around 
business rates 

Failure to predict  
income from 
retained business 
rates accurately 

Urgent need to 
make budget 
reductions to 
ensure a 
balanced budget. 
Quality of service 
compromised. 
Reputational 
damage. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 
  

  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Quarterly business 
rate monitoring of year 
to date  position 
Prudent budget 
estimates for current 
and future years 
Relying on past 
receipts for current 
funding. 
Participate in  Kent BR 
pool and pilot 

  

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Tim Sams 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP5 Reduction in 
quality of 
services 

 
 
 

Partners not 
meeting agreed 
delivery targets. 
Reduction in 
workforce. 
Inadequate 
performance 
monitoring. 

Dissatisfied 
stakeholders 
Reputational 
damage 
Negative publicity 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Identify the anticipated 
outcomes.   
Risk assessment. 
Monitoring/review. 
Workforce succession 
planning. 
Consider options for 
closer working with 
partners. 
Adequate partnership 
agreements in place. 
Contract management 
arrangements in place. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Adrian 
Gowan/ 
 
Philippa 
Curtis 

CP6 Increased costs 
for waste and 
recycling 

Central 
Government 
imposes recycling 
infraction charges 
on 
underperforming 
WCAs 

Increased 
pressure on 
budgets 
Potential 
infraction charges 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

Review of 
arrangement with KCC 
Work with contractor to 
increase take up of  
garden waste 
collection scheme 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Dave 
Thomas 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP7 Failure or 
threats to IT 
systems 

 
 

Occurrence of 
factors identified 
as ‘Business 
Risks’, including 
external IT 
security threats 

Non delivery of 
priorities or services  
Customer 
dissatisfaction 
Negative publicity 
Loss of key data 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

Review of disaster 
recovery 
arrangements and 
implementation of 
recommendations 
Update business 
continuity plans. 
Staff awareness and 
training re cyber risks 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Paul Blake 

CP9 Ineffective 
workforce 
succession 
planning 
 

 

Ageing work 
force,  
Difficulties in 
attracting suitable 
candidates 
Reduction in 
workforce 
numbers 

 

Insufficient capacity 
and skills to deliver 
strategic outcomes 
Reduced resilience 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

  
 
  

  

      

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Prepare workforce 
strategy. 
Introduce flexible 
working arrangements 
to attract and retain 
staff. 
Assess gaps and 
address when 
appointing staff. 
Amend delegation 
arrangements. 
Prioritise activities.  
Staff training and 
development. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Philippa 
Curtis 
 
Marie Kelly-
Stone (re 
delegations) 

CP10 Outbreak of 
COVID 
amongst staff 
 

 

Failure to put 
measures in place 
to minimise risk of 
COVID outbreak 
at the Civic 
Centre 

 

Insufficient staff to 
deliver key services 

 
L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Risk assessment for 
Civic Centre kept 
under review and 
measures per 
assessment put in 
place 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sarah Martin 

CP11 Unable to 
respond to a 
business 
continuity 

Failure to have an 
aligned, 
embedded, 
owned and 

Major disruption to 
services 
Reduction in access 
channels available to 

 

L
IK

E

L
IH

O

O
D

 

      

Ensure business 
continuity plans are up 
to date. 
Ensure staff know 

 

L
IK

E

L
IH

O

O
D

 

      

 
Sarah Martin 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

incident understood 
business 
continuity plan 

residents/customers 
Vulnerable residents 
put at risk through 
lack of service 
delivery 
Negative publicity 
Reputational damage 

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

where to find the 
business continuity 
plan for their service. 
Ensure arrangements 
are embedded and 
understood. 
Staff training provided. 
BCP tested regularly. 
IT Disaster Recovery 
arrangements to be 
finalised 

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP12 Failure to 
respond 
effectively to a 
major incident 

Inadequate 
emergency plan 
arrangements 

Inability to deliver 
key services 
Vulnerable 
residents put at 
risk through lack 
of service delivery 
Increased short 
term demand for 
some services 
e.g. housing  
Reputational 
damage 

 

 

   

    

   

 

 
 

Participation in 
Resilience forum. 
Regular training 
provided to relevant 
staff. 
Emergency plans in 
place. 
Regular testing of 
emergency plans. 
Ensure staff 
awareness of Counter 
Terrorism and Security 
Act. 
Ensure communication 
plan is adequate in the 
event of a major 
incident 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Mark 
Salisbury 
(Tony 
Cannon) 
 
Lewis Kirnon  

CP13 Failure to 
respond 
effectively to a 
local/national 
lockdown 

Inadequate local 
outbreak plans 

Inability to deliver 
key services 
Vulnerable 
residents put at 
risk Reputational 
damage 

 

 

   

    

   
 

 
 

Close liaison with 
Public Health and KRF 
Local outbreak plan 
now finalised 
Arrangements in place 
with HLC for food 
support 
Arrangements for 
Emergency Hub 
agreed 
Communication plans 
in place 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Sarah Martin 
 
Annie 
Sargent 
 
Lewis Kirnon 
 
Jeanette 
Pegler  

CP14 Inadequate 
data sharing, 
data security 
and 
information 
management  

Ineffective 
processes or not 
following 
processes for 
sharing of data 
with appropriate 
agencies/ 

Major reputational 
damage 
Theft or loss of 
data 
Viral attack 
Improper 
disclosure of 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O

O
D

       

      

Data sharing 
arrangements kept up 
to date and reviewed 
regularly 
Data protection 
training provided to all 
staff 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O

O
D

       

      

 
Marie Kelly-
Stone 
 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

authorities leading 
to data 
safeguarding 
failure 

confidential 
information 
Improper disposal 
of IT equipment 
Legal 
consequences 
and potential fines 

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

Managers responsible 
for keeping IARs up to 
date 
Privacy notices 
reviewed as 
appropriate 
Schrems II judgement- 
review of data 
processing contracts 
applying the EDPB’s 
recommendations 
01/20 

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP15 Failure to 
effectively 
manage the 
Council’s 
assets 

Insufficient 
investment, 
capacity, 
maintenance and 
inspection of the 
Council’s assets 

Deteriorating 
assets 
More insurance 
claims 
Increased health 
and safety risk 
Reduced income 
streams 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

    
 
  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

New MT restructure 
provides identified 
resource for asset 
management 
Finalise asset 
management plan. 
Regular inspection of 
properties. 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

 
New Asset 
Managemen
t & Major 
Projects 
Officer 
 
Marie Kelly-
Stone 

CP16 Failure to 
comply with 
Health and 
Safety 
legislation 

Health & Safety 
procedures not 
robust or not 
followed 

Employees 
injured through 
work activity 
Council 
prosecuted for 
breaches of 
health & safety 
legislation 
Possible 
Corporate 
Manslaughter 
charges due to 
member of public, 
contractor or 
employee killed 
Reputational 
damage 
Increased 
insurance claims 
and insurance 
premiums 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

    
 
  

 

IMPACT 
 

Health & Safety Policy 
reviewed regularly. 
Training provided to 
staff. 
Health & Safety risk 
assessments carried 
out regularly. 
Contracts include 
appropriate health & 
safety standards. 
Regular maintenance 
and inspection of all 
plant & equipment. 
Proper investigation of 
any health & safety 
breaches. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

 
Annie 
Sargent 

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP17 Insufficient 
defences 
against fraud 
and corruption 

Fraud or bribery is 
committed against 
the Council due to 
insufficient 
internal controls 
or failure to 
promote an anti-
fraud 
organisational 
culture 

Breach of trust 
Reputational 
damage 
Financial loss 
Costly criminal 
proceedings 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

 

IMPACT 
 

Fully staffed, well 
trained corporate fraud 
team. 
Regular internal audit 
of internal controls. 
Promotion of anti-fraud 
policy and 
whistleblowing policy. 
Annual declarations of 
interest completed. 
Effective Audit Board. 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

 

IMPACT 
 

  
Sarah Martin 

CP18 Procurement 
and 
commissioning 
of services is 
not carried out 
effectively, 
consistently or 
in accordance 
with law 

Procurement 
processes are not 
consistently 
applied across the 
Council 
Officers fail to 
follow 
procurement 
law/guidance 

Challenge to 
procurement 
decisions 
Negative publicity 
Increased costs of 
purchasing 
services 
Disruption to 
service delivery 
Failure to achieve 
value for money 
through 
procurement 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

    
 
  

      

      

        IMPACT 

Embedded 
procurement 
processes, including 
dedicated procurement 
framework. 
Regular training for 
staff. 
Financial checks 
carried out on 
contractors as part of 
procurement process. 
Good contract 
management 
processes in place. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

        IMPACT 

 
Tim Sams P

age 85
A

genda Item
 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP19 Channel shift 
is not 
embedded 
across the 
Council 

Managers do not 
give proper 
consideration as 
to how they can 
push more of their 
services on line 
Residents want to 
continue to 
contact the 
Council via the 
telephone, by 
letter or face to 
face 
Unable/unwilling 
to fund technology 
necessary to 
facilitate shift 

Unable to deliver 
the savings that 
can be generated 
from channel shift 
Increased 
pressure on staff 
Negative impact 
on service 
delivery 
 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

              IMPACT 

Channel shift 
prioritised at a 
corporate level. 
Promotion of services 
available on line. 
Review of all council 
literature to promote 
the website. 
Networking with other 
councils to understand 
new opportunities for 
improving online 
services and their take 
up. 
Review of processes 
within services. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

               IMPACT 

Communicat
ions & 
Customer 
Services 
working 
together 

CP20 Failure to 
implement 
arrangements 
for the 
maintenance 
of an accurate 
electoral 
register 

Insufficient 
resource to 
support 
requirements 
effectively 
Failure 
of/problems with 
electoral 
management 
system 

Increased 
pressure on 
elections team 
Loss of integrity of 
electoral register 
Reduction in 
number of 
residents eligible 
to vote 
Increased risk of 
challenge 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

               IMPACT 

Promotion of  
requirements to 
residents. 
Staff fully trained. 
Additional staff 
resources brought in 
where appropriate. 
Close working with 
software providers. 
Regular review of 
costs against budget. 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

      IMPACT 

 
Jeanette 
Pegler 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

 
REF RISK RISK TRIGGER CONSEQUENCE CURRENT RISK 

RATING 
MITIGATION/ 
 CONTROLS 

TARGET RISK 
RATING 

LEAD 
OFFICER 

CP21 Failure to 
implement 
plans for 
elections 

Unable to secure 
suitable facilities 
for polling and 
holding election 
counts 

Pressure to find 
alternative 
suitable 
accommodation 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

               IMPACT 

Venues identified for 
holding of Counts, 
including C floor at 
Civic Centre 
Regular dialogue with 
current providers of 
polling station facilities 
Review of polling 
stations to be 
undertaken regularly 
Review of alternative 
accommodation 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

               IMPACT 

Sarah 
Martin/ 
Jeanette 
Pegler 

CP22 Failure to hold 
COVID secure 
Elections 

Unable to secure 
suitable facilities 
for polling and 
holding election 
counts due to 
additional COVID 
measures 
required 
Insufficient 
planning for 
COVID measures 

Pressure to find 
alternative 
suitable 
accommodation 
Residents feel 
unsafe voting 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

  
 
  

  

      

               IMPACT 

Risk assessments to 
be carried out for all 
polling stations 
Clear guidelines given 
to polling staff 
Counting in divisions 
to minimise number of 
observers 
Count Venue set out to 
allow social distancing 

 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

  
 
  

  

               IMPACT 

Sarah 
Martin/ 
Jeanette 
Pegler 

CP23 Failure to 
ensure 
effective 
parish 
governance 
arrangements 

Parish 
governance 
arrangements are 
not reviewed to 
reflect changes in 
electorate 
numbers and new 
emerging 
communities 

Parish 
arrangements are 
not representative 
and do not 
support the new 
communities that 
are created as a 
result of housing 
development in 
the Borough 

 
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

 
  

    

      

 

IMPACT 
 

A Community 
Governance Review 
has been carried out 
across the whole 
Borough.  
Arrangements to be 
reviewed as further 
development takes 
place 

 
 

L
IK

E
L
IH

O
O

D
 

      

      

 
  

    

 

IMPACT 
 

Jeanette 
Pegler 

CP24 Risk that not 
all strategic 
risks have 

An important risk 
has not been 
highlighted by the 

A key strategic 
risk is not being 
effectively 

 

L
IK

E

L
IH

O

O
D

 

      

Regular review of the 
strategic risk register. 
Regular training to 

 

L
IK

E

L
IH

O

O
D

 

      

 
Sarah Martin 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  

Updated October 2020 

 

been captured 
within the 
register 

appropriate 
manager and 
therefore has not 
been reflected in 
the register 

managed 
Potential impact 
on service 
delivery/ available 
finances 
Reputational 
damage 

  
 
  

  

      

               IMPACT 

managers on risk 
management. 

      

  
 
  

  

               IMPACT 

 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 8



 
AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS 

 

1. Summary 

 

1.1 After the October 2020 meeting of the Board, the Chairman selected five 
creditor payments for checking. This report summarises the findings of this 
exercise. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That Members note the content of this report and request any further 

explanations as required. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review. Following review 
of these payments, Members receive a report on the findings, and 
consider them as part of each meeting. This is intended to provide 
Members with reasonable assurance that goods and services 
commissioned or procured, for which payments have been made, are in 
compliance with Council procedures. In particular, that they have been 
properly authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making 
payment. 

3.2. At the October 2019 meeting, the Audit Board agreed a proposal to 
update the method by which payments are selected each month. The 
previous reports were arranged by alphabet, whereas the revised report 
would look back at the last quarter, to ensure that transactions tested 
were current.  

3.3. The following approach was agreed:  

Meeting SIC Selection 
Transaction Report 

Parameters 

Q1 (April – June) A B C D E F Jan to March 

Q2 (July – September) G H I J K L M April – June 

Q3 (October – 
December) 

N O P Q R S July – September 

Q4 (January – March) T U V W X Y Z October – December 

 

3.4. The following five payments were selected by the Chair at random: 

 Patrol Parking     £88.80 (Gross) 
 Andy Barnes                    £100.00 (Gross) 
 Pilkington Jewellers Ltd       £550.00 (Gross) 
 Public Practice                    £5,000.00 (Gross) 
 Redcentric      £2,005.00 (Gross) 

 

Page 89 Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 
4. Summary of Findings 

 
4.1 The results of testing confirm that three of the spend decisions were 

made appropriately and in compliance with Council procedures. But two 
of the procurements were not in compliance with Contract Standing 
Orders. Detailed summaries of the outcome of each payment are set out 
below. 
 

4.2 We will be issuing some communications to the organisation in January 
2021 to raise awareness of the selective invoice check process and also 
to publicise emergent themes and findings, to share lessons learned and 
good practice across the Council.  
 

5. Detailed Findings 
 
5.1 Patrol Parking (£88.80 gross) – This payment was the fee for the first 

quarter of 2020/21, for 296 Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) issued in the 
Borough during June 2020.  Due to the situation with COVID-19, no 
PCNs were issued in April or May 2020.  Local authorities who undertake 
civil parking enforcement are required by statute to make provision for 
independent adjudication and PATROL (Parking and Traffic Regulations 
Outside London) are the governing body to whom the Council pay 30 
pence for every PCN issued.  For this quarter, payment was made 
against the actual number of PCNs issued, rather than estimated figures 
(based on the previous year) as is the normal case.  A Purchase order 
was not required in this instance and the invoice, received on 14/8/20, 
was promptly paid on 20/8/20 (5 working days). Testing confirmed that 
the payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with 
payment procedures.  
 

5.2 Andy Barnes (£100.00 gross) – This payment was for a photographer 
to take photos of Cllr. Sandhu raising the flag at the India Independence 
Day celebrations on 15/8/20. The photos were taken in anticipation of 
some publicity that was not later required. A purchase order was not 
raised using the Council's e-Procurement system due to the urgency of 
arranging the photographer; instead, it was arranged over the phone. 
The invoice was received on 19/8/20 and paid promptly on 27/8/20 (7 
working days). Testing confirmed that the payment was made promptly 
and in accordance with payment procedures.  
 

5.3 Pilkington Jewellers Ltd (£550.00 gross) – This payment was for the 
supply of the past Mayor's Badge, which is presented to the outgoing 
Mayor at the meeting of Annual Council. The meeting normally takes 
place in May, but was postponed due to the situation with COVID-19. 
Pilkington has supplied civic regalia to the Council for many years, 
without material increase to prices.  A purchase order was not raised 
using the Council's e-Procurement system and was instead ordered via 
email. We have provided appropriate advice to the service regarding 
testing market prices and the importance of raising purchase orders. The 
invoice, although received onto the Finance system on 9/9/20 and paid 

Page 90Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 
promptly on 21/9/20 (9 working days), was actually delivered with the 
badge in April 2020.  The invoice was dated 21/4/20, which means it took 
approximately 110 working days to pay this company.  We have 
suggested that the service advises Pilkington to send further invoices 
directly to the Council's Payment section, to avoid delays. Testing 
confirmed that the payment was justified but not in accordance with 
procurement or payment procedures. 
 

5.4 Public Practice (£5,000.00 gross) – This payment was for the 12-month 
placement fee for the Principal Urban Designer. Public Practice is a not 
for profit organisation that match their associates to placements working 
in a local authorities. The associates spend 90% of their time working for 
the local authority and the other 10% is dedicated to attending the Public 
Practice Research and Development Programme. Placement fees range 
between £5000 - £7000. A purchase order (P022956) was raised using 
the Council’s e-procurement system in June 2020 and the invoice, 
received on 24/6/20 was promptly paid on 9/7/20 (12 working days). 
Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with payment procedures. 
 

5.5 Redcentric (£2,005.00 gross) – This payment was for the renewal of the 
3-year IT support services for a product called FortiAnalyzer.  
FortiAnalyzer allows for all the logs from the FortiGate firewall to be 
stored in a readable format and stored for up to six months. A purchase 
order was raised using the Council's e-Procurement system (P022967).  
The invoice was received on 31/7/20 and paid promptly on 10/8/20 (7 
working days). Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made 
promptly and in accordance with payment procedures.  
 

6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 
 

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 

Financial Implications While there are no direct financial implications 
associated with the outcomes detailed in the 
report, compliance with agreed financial 
procedures helps to ensure that the Council 
maintains a sound system of financial control 
and governance. It also helps ensure value for 
money.  

Legal Implications There is a risk of non-compliance with 
Contract Standing Orders and the Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 if appropriate 
procurement routes are not followed.  

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Page 91 Agenda Item 9



 
AUDIT BOARD 
20 January 2021 

 

Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 
Council carries potential inherent risks of 
fraud, or misappropriation. The Selective 
Invoice Checks process is one of many steps 
employed by the Council to manage fraud 
risks and to ensure value for money. 

  
8. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

Not applicable 
 
9. Appendices 
 

None 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

None 
 

21/12/20 
 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit Partnership 
& 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 

N/A 

 

Page 92Agenda Item 9


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2020
	6 Report from the External Auditor
	Item 6 App A DBC AFR  Addedndum.km 27.11.2020
	Item 6 App B Dartford BC 2019-20 AAL

	7 Internal Audit Update (January 2021)
	Item 7 FINAL Appendix A - Internal Audit Update Report (January 2021)

	8 Strategic Risk Register
	Item 8 Appendix MKSStrategic Risks Register updated October 2020 v3

	9 Selective Invoice Checks

